AGREEMENT BETWEEN DEER CREEK-MACKINAW COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 701 AND THE DEER CREEK-MACKINAW EDUCATION ASSOCIATION/IEA-NEA



AUGUST 1, 2021 – JULY 31, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION1
ARTICLE I	II NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES1
ARTICLE 1	III EMPLOYEE AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS2
3.1	Right to Organize and Participate2
3.2	Employee Discipline2
3.3	Nondiscrimination
3.4	Right to Have Representation Present
3.5	Academic Freedom
3.6	Dues Deduction
3.7	Personnel File
3.8	Use of District Facilities
ARTICLE	IV EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS4
4.1	Conditions of Employment4
4.2	Notification of Assignments
4.3	Posting of Vacancy4
4.4	Voluntary Transfers
4.5	Involuntary Transfers
4.6	Procedure for Communication of Concerns5
4.7	Unsafe and/or Hazardous Conditions
4.8	Work Day for Non-Certified Employees
4.9	Breaks for Non-Certified Employees
	Lunch for Non-Certified Employees
	Return to Work Provision for Non-Certified Employees
	Shift / Assignment Change for Non-Certified Employees
	Additional Time and Overtime for Non-Certified Employees
	Termination of Employment for Employees
	Security Cameras
ARTICLE '	V REDUCTION IN FORCE7
	Acquisition of Seniority for Certified Employees
5.2	Order of Lay Off for Certified Employees
5.3	Acquisition of Seniority for Non-Certified Employees
5.4	Posting of Seniority List for Non-Certified Employees 9
5.5	Order of Lay Off or Reduction in Hours for Non-Certified Employees
5.6	Recall Procedures for Non-Certified Employees
5.0	
ARTICLE	
6.1	General Guidelines
6.2	Sick Leave (School Code 5/24-6)10
63	Personal Leave

	6.4	Professional Leave	10
	6.5	Association Leave	.:.1.2 1.3
	6.6	No Leave Deduction on Non-School Days	13 13
	6.7	Family and Medical Leave	13
	6.8	Sabbatical Leave	13 12
	6.9	Military Leave	al 3 1.3
		Unexcused Absences	13 12
			<u> 13</u>
ARTI	ICLE	2012 COM ENDATION AND FRINGE DENEFTIS	.14
	7.1	Full Experience Credit	14
	7.2	Compensation – Salary Schedule	14
	7.3	Supplemental Assignments	.14
	7.4	Payroll Deductions	14
	7.5	Compensation to Illinois Teachers' Retirement System for Certified Employees	.15
	7.6	IMRF Contributions for Non-Certified Employees.	. 15
	7.7	Pay Days	15
	7.8	Hospitalization and Major Medical Insurance.	15
	7.9	Flexible Benefit Plan	.15
	7.10	Mileage	16
	7.11	Tuition Reimbursement for Employees – Required Courses	.16
	7.12	Tuition Reimbursement for Certified Employees – Other Courses	16
	7.13	Stipend for Staff Development by Certified Employees	17
	7.14	Part-Time Certified Employees	17
	7.15	Additional Certified Employees Professional Compensation	18
	7.16	Holidays for Non-Certified Employees	18
	7.17	Vacation for Non-Certified Employees	18
	7.18	Time Sheets for Non-Certified Employees	19
	7.19	Extra-Curricular Driving	19
	7.20	Retirement Incentive	19
	7.21	Stipend for Required Teacher Training for AP Classes	21
4 D.			
AKII	CLE	VIII EMPLOYEE EVALUATION	21
	8.1	Purpose	21
	8.2	General Guidelines	21
	8.3	Formal Observation Process for Certified Employees	22
	8.4	Informal Observation for Certified Employees	23
	8.5	Unsatisfactory Evaluations for Certified Employees	23
	8.6	Non-Certified Employee Evaluation Procedures	23
ARTI	CLE I	X GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	24
	9.1	Definition of Grievance	
	9.2	Procedure	
	9.3	Grievance Time Limit	∠ + 25
	9.4	No Written Response	25 25
	9.5	Class Grievance / Bypass	25 25
		Filing of Grievance Materials	25

9.7	Claim in Other Form	25
9.8	Cooperation	25
9.9	Grievance Withdrawn or Settlement	26
ICLE :	X SCHOOL OPERATIONS	26
10.1	No Strike Clause	26
10.2	District's Exclusive Right to Manage	26
10.3	Subcontracting	26
ICLE	XI EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	26
11.1	Complete Understanding	26
11.2	Incorporation of Board Policies	26
11.3	Inclusion and Saving Clause	26
11.4	Conformity to Law	27
11.5	Duration of Agreement	27
ENDI	CES A) SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE	28
	9.8 9.9 ICLE 10.1 10.2 10.3 ICLE 11.1 11.2 11.3 11.4 11.5	9.8 Cooperation

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

The Board of Education of Deer Creek-Mackinaw Community Unit School District No. 701, Tazewell County, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" recognizes the Deer Creek-Mackinaw Educational Association/IEA-NEA, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", as the sole and exclusive negotiating agent for all full and part-time certified and all full- and part-time educational support personnel and all other certified and non-certified employees that are not administrative, supervisory, or temporary pursuant to the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act.

ARTICLE II - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES

- 1. The Board's negotiating team shall consist of four (4) members [three (3) Board members and the Superintendent]. There may be two nonparticipating observers in attendance from the Board or administration.
- 2. DCMEA/IEA-NEA's negotiating team shall consist of a Chief Negotiator and five members designated by the DCMEA. There may be two nonparticipating observers in attendance from the membership.
- 3. A quorum of the joint negotiating committee shall consist of three members of the Board team and three members of the DCMEA team.
- 4. Definite dates for meetings shall be agreed upon in advance.
- 5. Meetings shall last no longer than three (3) hours unless agreed to by both parties.
- 6. The Chief Negotiator of each negotiating team or designee shall be the official spokesperson for the team.
- 7. All proposals shall be submitted in writing, with copies furnished for each committee member.
- 8. Either Chief Negotiator may call for a caucus at any time during the negotiating session. A caucus shall last no more than thirty minutes unless agreed to by both parties.
- 9. The parties shall make every attempt to negotiate non-financial contract language before proceeding to negotiating financial issues.
- 10. The last item of business at each meeting shall be the establishment of a date, time, and place for the next meeting. If possible, a tentative agenda will be established.
- 11. All negotiation sessions will be kept confidential until such time that both sides mutually agree to publicly share information or until impasse. Only the Chief Negotiator of each party or designated agent shall give information to the press during negotiations.

- 12. All negotiated items upon which tentative agreement is reached shall be reduced to writing and initialed by the Chief Negotiators pending precise wording and acceptance of the final contract.
- 13. A tentative agreement reached during the negotiation process will be presented to the Board of Education and DCMEA membership for ratification.
- 14. Prudence and restraint shall govern the participants of both negotiating teams in discussing proposals and information relating to negotiations.
- 15. Both teams, by mutual agreement, may effect a suspension of the above rules.

ARTICLE III - EMPLOYEE AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

3.1 RIGHT TO ORGANIZE AND PARTICIPATE

Employees shall have the right to organize, join, and assist the Association, participate in professional negotiations with the Board, or to refrain from such activities. Employees shall have the right to exercise any of the privileges set forth in this Agreement without reprisal.

3.2 EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

Rules and regulations governing employee conduct shall be reasonable and the enforcement of employee discipline shall be fair and exercised for a just cause.

3.3 NONDISCRIMINATION

Provisions of the Agreement shall be applied in such a manner as not to unlawfully discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, creed, marital status, age, sex, or national origin, or disability.

3.4 RIGHT TO HAVE REPRESENTATION PRESENT

- A. An employee shall be entitled, upon request, to have an Association representative present at any meeting when a formal discussion of performance or potential/pending disciplinary action is concerned or at any step of the grievance procedure. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to obtain representation within a mutually agreed time limit. This clause does not apply to evaluations conducted pursuant to Article VIII.
- B. When an employee is required to appear before the Board, the employee shall be advised in writing of the reason(s) for the appearance at least five (5) calendar days before the scheduled appearance.

3.5 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Academic freedom shall be guaranteed to all certified employees. Academic freedom shall mean that certified employees are free to present instructional materials which are pertinent to the subject and grade level taught, within the outline of appropriate course content and with the planned instructional program as determined by normal administrative procedures.

Academic freedom is not an absolute and shall not be construed as reason to disregard the use of a board approved textbook adoption and/or curriculum.

3.6 DUES DEDUCTION

Dues of the Association shall be deducted by the District Office in accordance with the following stipulations:

- A. The Association shall inform the District Office of the amount to be deducted at least ten (10) days before the pay date the deduction will be implemented.
- B. The dues shall be deducted in equal payments from each authorized employee's paycheck. The authorization is to continue in force unless revoked by the employee for a succeeding membership year by giving written notice to that effect to the local Association on or before September 1st.
- C. All dues deducted shall be remitted to the Association within fifteen (15) calendar days after such deductions are made.
- D. The Association shall indemnify and save harmless the Board and all its agents and employees from any and all claims demand, suits and costs incurred in connection with any such claim, demand, or suit resulting from any reasonable action taken or omitted by the Board or any of its agents/employees with the above provisions.

3.7 PERSONNEL FILE

- A. The employee must submit a written request to inspect his/her personnel records to the Superintendent. The Superintendent will provide the employee the opportunity for inspection within two (2) working days after the request. The employee may place therein written reaction to any of the record contents provided it is done in the presence of the Superintendent or designee.
- B. The employee may not remove anything from his/her personnel file. Each employee is entitled to one free copy of his/her personnel file and any additional information after the original copy. The employee will be charged the standard cost for any copies made after the original copy.
- C. The Board retains the right to exclude from viewing personnel files confidential material; such as, but not limited to, placement material, personal reference letters, and reference checks from previous employers. In the event that a Freedom of Information Act request of an employee personnel file is submitted to the District, the District will inform the employee within two (2) working days.

3.8 USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES

- A. The Association may use District facilities for lawful meetings provided such meetings do not interfere with the regular school operation and proper building use procedures are followed.
- B. The Association shall have designated bulletin board space in each building.

C. Employee mail boxes, e-mail, computer mail, and interschool mail may be used to circulate materials to members. Communications will be limited to official business of the Association.

ARTICLE IV – EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS

4.1 CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

As a condition of employment, newly hired employees must provide the District Office with a Physical Exam Form signed by a physician stating the newly hired employee is in good physical condition (at employees expense), submit to a criminal background check, provide the district with a valid license registered in Tazewell County, provide the district with updated official transcripts, sign a Mandated Reporter Status Form and a Drug Free Workplace Form, complete sexual harassment training, and any required training provided by the District at no cost to the employee provided the employee receives the training offered by the District.

4.2 NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENTS

- A. Prior to the end of the current school term the district shall give written notification to all certified employees whose tentative assignment for the forthcoming year may change. If any change in assignment must be made, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the affected employee within five (5) calendar days after the decision has been made. Except in case of an emergency, no changes shall be made less than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of the school year.
- B. The District shall give written notification to all non-certified employees of an assignment change for the forthcoming school term no later than thirty (30) days preceding the first day of school. In case of emergency, employees will be notified immediately of any changes in assignment.

4.3 POSTING OF VACANCY

- A. If the Board elects to fill a vacant position or create a new position, the District Office will have the vacancy notice immediately posted in a designated place in each building (District Office during the summer) and on the web site.
- B. All job vacancies (including supplemental listed in Appendix A) shall be posted for a minimum of ten (10) calendar days prior to filling except in emergency situations or with the consent of the DCMEA President.
- C. Any employee interested in a position must formally apply by submitting a letter of application to the building Principal with a copy to the Superintendent. Current employees will be given consideration for positions.
- D. The Board's decision in filling vacancies shall be final.

4.4 VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

- A. Any employee may apply for a transfer to another posted vacancy for which she/he is qualified. Such application shall be in writing to the building Principal with a copy to the Superintendent.
- B. A voluntary transfer will result if the Board agrees to transfer the individual to the requested assignment. After considering current employees and all other qualified applicants, the Board shall determine who is to be transferred or hired.

4.5 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

- A. An involuntary transfer occurs when there is relocation of personnel to another assignment or shift for which the individual does not request. When a reassignment of an employee is necessary, the administration shall consider all volunteers before any involuntary transfers.
- B. If the employee, after notification of his/her reassignment, finds that the reassignment is unacceptable, a conference will be held with the Superintendent and building Principal(s) if requested by the employee.
- C. The affected employee may request to be released from his/her contract if the involuntary transfer is not acceptable. The employee must present a written resignation to the Superintendent within five (5) work days of the notification of assignment change.

4.6 PROCEDURE FOR COMMUNICATION OF CONCERNS

The employee and employer shall first communicate any and all concern at the level closest to resolution of the problem. If the concern cannot be resolved at that level and upon the request of either party, an Association Management Committee (no more than four (4) association members including the President) and the Superintendent and building Principal, if appropriate, will hear the concern. Concerns handled in this manner may be grieved. Furthermore, the DCMEA and Superintendent will regularly meet to discuss general concerns and issues.

4.7 UNSAFE AND/OR HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS

Employees will notify in writing the building Principal or Superintendent of any and all unsafe, hazardous, or unhealthy working conditions. The Principal or Superintendent will take necessary corrective action in a timely manner and notify employees of such.

4.8 WORK DAY FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

The actual starting time, lunch time, break times, and ending times will be established by the administration at the beginning of the work year, unless extenuating circumstances occur that prevent meeting the deadline. The length of full-time non-certified employee's work day shall be at least 7.25 hours per day. All other employees shall be classified as part-time and the length of the work day shall be based upon need as established by the administration. Employees working a minimum of 30 hours per week shall be entitled to benefits.

4.9 BREAKS FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. All full-time employees covered by this agreement shall be allowed a fifteen (15) minute paid break before lunch and a fifteen minute paid break after lunch. Break times will be established by the building Principal.
- B. All part-time employees covered by this agreement that work at least four (4) hours shall be allowed a twenty (20) minute paid break.

4.10 LUNCH FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

All employees who work seven and one quarter (7.25) continuous hours or more shall be provided an unpaid meal period of thirty (30) minutes. The meal period shall be given to the employee no later than 5 hours after beginning work. It shall be uninterrupted except for emergencies. Employees who are directly related to the cafeteria/lunch program and do not normally have a thirty (30) minute duty free lunch, shall be provided a free lunch equal in value to an adult lunch on days lunch is served to students. Lunch time will be established by the building Principal.

4.11 RETURN TO WORK PROVISION FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

Any employee covered by this agreement that is called by the Principal or Superintendent to return to work outside his/her regularly scheduled shift shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours at the appropriate rate. This provision does not involve an extension of regular hours.

4.12 SHIFT / ASSIGNMENT CHANGE FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

Every effort will be made by the administration to notify employees immediately of any shift/assignment change. Except in emergency situations, a ten (10) work day notice will be given before any change in shift or assignment.

4.13 ADDITIONAL TIME AND OVERTIME FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. All additional time to the scheduled work assignment and overtime (over 40 hours per week) must be pre-approved by the building Principal or the Superintendent.
- B. Working overtime shall be voluntary on the part of the employee except in emergency situations. All overtime work will be paid at one and one-half (1½) times the employee's regular pay rate as calculated for time worked beyond forty (40) hours per week. The administration will notify employees of overtime as soon as possible. Overtime shall first be offered to employees within the specific building where the overtime is needed. The Board reserves the right to employ individuals on an as-needed basis rather than pay overtime (i.e. snow removal, mowing).

4.14 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT FOR EMPLOYEES

Termination of employment may be through resignation, involuntary termination, or retirement. An exit interview will be conducted when deemed appropriate by the supervisor to determine how the District may improve policies, procedures, working conditions, and reduce turnover.

4.15 SECURITY CAMERAS

The primary purpose of security cameras is to secure the buildings for the safety of staff and students. Security cameras will be used for routine surveillance. Security camera video footage will not be accessed without a reasonable basis as documentation in the employee evaluation process. Data from surveillance measures may be reviewed by the District's personnel in connection with investigations of: (1) suspected criminal conduct, (2) student or employee misconduct, or (3) security violations or incidents.

ARTICLE V - REDUCTION IN FORCE

5.1 ACQUISITION OF SENIORITY FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Seniority for certified employees shall be defined as the length of continuous full-time service within the District.
- B. A non-tenure certified employee shall not acquire seniority in the District until he/she achieves tenure.
- C. A tenured certified employee shall acquire one year of seniority for each year of full-time employment in the district.
- D. Upon acquisition of tenure, the certified employee shall be credited with seniority dated from the certified employee's first day of continuous, uninterrupted full-time service to the district which shall be measured from the first day the certified employee actually reported for work for which he/she is compensated.
- E. Seniority shall not accrue nor shall it be lost during any approved leave of absence.
- F. If a certified employee leaves the District's employ and returns, he/she must serve a probationary period and upon receiving tenure will accumulate seniority from the most recent date of employment.
- G. A tenured certified employee who voluntarily requests placement on a part-time teaching status shall relinquish tenure and seniority rights.
- H. A tenured certified employee who is involuntarily reduced to part-time certified employee status shall retain tenure and accumulate seniority in proportion to the fraction of the school day or year the certified employee is required to be on duty (i.e. a 3/8 time employee shall accrue 3/8 time seniority per year). This paragraph will not affect seniority already credited in the preceding years of service.

5.2 ORDER OF LAY OFF FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

A. Certified employees honorably dismissed or have a reduction in hours/days of employment (RIF) because of a decision to decrease the number of certified employees or discontinue some type of teaching service shall receive written notice (sent certified mail or personal delivery with receipt) at least 45 calendar days before the end of the school term.

- B. The order of layoff shall be as follow:
 - 1. Non-tenured certified employees without any evaluations are to be dismissed first.
 - 2. All other certified employees, both tenured and non-tenured, are placed, in consultation with the union, into performance groups based upon their most recent evaluation(s). Reductions shall begin with Grouping One; the sequence of dismissal shall be at the discretion of the district, Grouping Two; the sequence of dismissal shall begin with the teacher with the lowest average performance evaluation rating being dismissed first. Certified employees with the same average performance evaluation rating shall be dismissed according to the shorter length of continuing service with the school district. In Groupings Three and Four, certified employees with the shorter length of continued service shall be dismissed first. Certified employees in Grouping Four will be dismissed last.
- C. RIF lists shall be given to the exclusive bargaining representative at least 75 days before the end of each school year. Certified employees shall notify the district within 10 days of notification of placement of any inaccuracies.
- D. RIF'd certified employees have the right to bump certified employees in lower performance groups and certified employees in the same performance group who have less seniority if the RIF'd certified employee is qualified to teach all the courses taught by the certified employee who will be bumped.
- E. Certified employees in Grouping Three and Grouping Four shall have the right to be recalled to any position for which the certified employee is qualified if the vacancy occurs within one calendar year from the beginning of the following school term.

5.3 ACOUISITION OF SENIORITY FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Seniority for non-certified employees shall be defined as the length of continuous service within the District commencing with the first day of employment with the district within the job classification as custodian, maintenance, head cook, cook, supervisor (i.e. but not limited to library, cafeteria, in school suspension), monitor, paraprofessional, bus driver, bus monitor, car only driver, secretary, and clerk. Bus drivers will be considered part-time employees. Job descriptions shall be established for each position.
- B. A non-certified employee may accumulate seniority in more than one category within the District starting with the 2003-04 school term. (i.e. An employee works as a paraprofessional for 3 years and then becomes a custodian for 3 years. When the District is looking at reduction in force, the employee has 3 years of seniority

- as a paraprofessional and custodian and would be able to "bump" within those categories.)
- C. Service shall not be interrupted due to normal breaks in the contractual year for that job classification such as approved vacations. Seniority shall not accrue nor shall it be lost during any leave of absence or time laid off.
- D. If an employee leaves the District's employ and returns, he/she must serve a probationary period and shall accumulate seniority from the most recent date of employment.

5.4 POSTING OF SENIORITY LIST FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. The seniority lists shall be posted in each school and a copy sent to the Association President by November 1.
- B. Any employee who disagrees with his/her placement on the seniority list must apply and show proof of length of employment, certification, and qualification by November 15. The Superintendent shall respond in writing before December 1.
- C. A final seniority list will be posted on or before January 15. The seniority list will be current through the then current school term.

5.5 ORDER OF LAY OFF OR REDUCTION IN HOURS FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Layoffs or reduction in hours shall be in reverse seniority with least senior first in each job classification. There shall be no "bumping" into other job classifications, where no seniority has been accrued.
- B. Hours worked per day may be reduced provided a thirty (30) calendar day written notice has been given.
- C. If the reduction of hours is due to an unforeseen reduction in student population then the written notice must be given (5) calendar days.

5.6 RECALL PROCEDURES FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

If within one (1) calendar year after any reduction in force, the Board increases the number of employees, reinstated positions, or vacancies occur, the Board shall first offer reemployment to the most senior first, so removed or dismissed from that category of position provided they are qualified or certified to hold such position under the following guidelines.

A. The District Office shall send a letter of recall by certified mail to the employee's address on file. It shall be the responsibility of each employee subject to recall to apprise the District Office in writing of said employee's mailing address at the time of layoff and of each mailing address change during the recall period.

- B. An employee's failure to respond affirmatively within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the District's letter to recall, shall result in termination of the employee's right to recall hereunder.
- C. If a temporary position for which an employee is certified or qualified becomes available during an employee's recall period, such position shall be offered the employee. Acceptance or refusal of a temporary position will not affect the recall rights of the employee.
- D. The Board's decision shall be final in the event it becomes necessary to choose under this Section between two or more employees who have the same seniority.

ARTICLE VI – LEAVES

6.1 GENERAL GUIDELINES

Employees shall not make arrangements of any kind which encroach upon the time they are required to be at school unless they have the advance approval of the building Principal or Superintendent. Employees must make every effort to notify the administration or designee no later than one hour and thirty minutes prior to the start of his/her scheduled work day on the day of an illness for the purpose of arranging substitutes. The administration will be responsible for arranging substitutes for all employees.

6.2 SICK LEAVE (School Code 5/24-6)

- A. Sick leave shall be defined as personal sickness or injury which would prevent an employee from performing his/her duties, quarantine at home, and a serious illness or disability or death of a member of the immediate family requiring his/her attention. "Immediate family" shall include the employee's spouse, domestic partner, child, parents, guardian or caregiver, brothers, sisters, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, adoption, foster children, or other relative who lives in the house of the employee. For purpose of this section, step relatives shall be included in the definition (e.g. "parent" includes "step-parent").
- B. All certified employees will be credited with twelve (12) sick days to be used in the event of illness or physical disability at the beginning of each school year. At twenty (20) years of experience, certified employees will be credited with eighteen (18) sick days at the beginning of each school year. At thirty (30) years of experience, certified employees will be credited with twenty-four (24) sick days at the beginning of each school year. Unused sick days will accumulate from year to year but shall not exceed 360 days.
- C. All non-certified employees will receive at the beginning of their employment year the number of sick days they are entitled according to the following:

9-month employees = 12 sick days

10-month employees = 13 sick days

11-month employees = 14 sick days

12-month employees = 15 sick days

Non-certified employees at twenty (20) years of experience will be credited with three (3) additional sick days at the beginning of each school year. Part-time employees will receive sick day(s) equivalent to their regular work day. Unused sick leave shall accumulate to a maximum of 240 days.

Individuals holding more than one non-certified position shall receive pro-rata sick leave in each position.

Example: One individual who is: 2 hours bus driver = 2 hours of sick leave 4 hours cook = 4 hours of sick leave

In order to qualify for sick leave, a non-certified employee must have been at work on the work day immediately preceding the first day of the sick leave.

- D. The Superintendent shall furnish each employee with a written statement, prior to the first pay date of each school year, setting forth the total accumulated sick leave days.
- E. Sick days may be used in one-half day increments. If a certified employee arrives before 9:00 a.m. or leaves after 2:00 p.m. and can find an internal substitute to cover without pay, then the certified employee shall not be charged for the leave.
- F. An employee who must be absent because of illness or physical disability shall notify the building Principal or designee in advance of the absence. If it is not possible to give advance notice, the employee shall notify his/her supervisor as soon as possible.
- G. In the event an absence continues for three or more consecutive work days, the employee may be asked to present a physician's note or other reasonably satisfactory evidence of the reason for his/her absence at his or her expense.
- H. An employee who wishes to attend the funeral of someone other than the immediate family may request approval of the Superintendent to use one sick day. Additional days may be granted by the Superintendent for extraordinary circumstances.

6.3 PERSONAL LEAVE

- A. Employees are entitled to two (2) personal leave days with pay per work year.
- B. Personal days may be used in one-half day increments.
- C. If any personal days remain at the end of the school term, they will be converted to the employee's sick days.
- D. Requests for personal days shall be made to the building Principal and will be honored in the order of receipt. Approval of personal days is subject to availability of substitutes.

- E. Personal days shall not be used to excuse an absence occurring during the last week of the school year or to extend a holiday break without express written consent of the building Principal. Each year, the Superintendent will notify all employees as to the deadline for use of personal days after the final revised calendar has been approved by the board. Every effort shall be made to meet the desires of the employees and the needs of the school district in establishing personal days.
- F. An employee may not use a personal day on a School Improvement Day, Final Exams, or Teacher Institute Day, unless extenuating circumstances exist that require the use of personal leave on said days.
- G. Personal leave days for the subsequent school term will be approved only after the last day of the preceding school term.

6.4 PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

- A. Certified employees shall be allowed one professional leave day. The number of professional leave days may be increased if the employee is requested/required by the administration to attend. Non-certified employees may be allowed a professional leave day subject to approval of the building principal and superintendent.
- B. Professional days may be used in one-half day increments.
- C. A Professional Leave Request Form shall be submitted to the Building Principal at least five (5) working days prior to the requested leave. The Building Principal shall forward the request to the Superintendent for final approval. Only professional development activities which are related to the district's mission and improving student achievement shall be granted. No more than two certified personnel per building may use professional leave on the same school day without Superintendent approval.
- D. The amount of reimbursement for professional leave will be determined by the Superintendent and indicated on the Professional Leave Request Form which will be returned to the teacher after approval/denial by the Superintendent. All expenses not approved by the Superintendent will be the responsibility of the teacher. The District retains the prerogative to determine the number of vehicles or mode of transportation to be used for professional leave.
- E. Completion of form ISBE 73-58 **must** be filled out when returning from all conferences explaining how the information gained will be disseminated to the appropriate staff members. Reimbursement, if any, will be granted after receipt of form 73-58.
- F. A Professional Leave Reimbursement Form with receipts must be submitted to the Superintendent who will present it to the Board for approval through the regular bills approval process.

6.5 ASSOCIATION LEAVE

- A. The Association President or appointed representatives may attend local, state, or national conferences without loss of salary. The Association shall reimburse the District for the cost of the substitute(s).
- B. No more than six (6) Association days, district-wide, will be allowed per year.
- C. Written notification to the Superintendent by the President of the Association shall be submitted at least five (5) days prior to the date of leave, except in case of emergency.

6.6 NO LEAVE DEDUCTION ON NON-SCHOOL DAYS

When the schools are officially closed by the Superintendent, no leave days previously arranged by an employee shall be deducted for such emergency days.

6.7 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

The District will comply with all rules and regulations of the Family Leave Act and Board Policy (FMLA).

6.8 SABBATICAL LEAVE

- A. The District may grant a sabbatical leave to full-time certified tenured employees upon request pursuant to the provisions of Section 24-6.1 of the School Code of the State of Illinois.
- B. During the period of Sabbatical Leave, the certified employee shall not engage in any activity for which salary or compensation is paid, unless the activity is directly related to the purpose for which the leave is granted, and has been approved by the Board.
- C. The certified employee shall apply for reinstatement not later than February 1 of the year for which the leave was granted. His/her application must provide evidence of attendance at the college or university and the subjects of study. A teacher who is reinstated following a sabbatical leave shall be placed in the salary schedule as if he/she had actually worked during the leave period and shall suffer no reduction in seniority.

6.9 MILITARY LEAVE

Military Leave shall be granted to comply with Section 5/10-20.7b of the <u>Illinois School Code</u> and Federal Code 29 CFR Part 825.

6.10 UNEXCUSED ABSENCES

Unexcused absences will result in a reduction in pay in proportion to the length of the absence as determined by the Superintendent.

ARTICLE VII - EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

7.1 FULL EXPERIENCE CREDIT

The employee shall be awarded full credit for teaching experience outside the District in determining salary position for new certified employees. Full credit shall mean all previous school experience. The Superintendent may grant credit for previous experience for non-certified new employees.

7.2 COMPENSATION -- SALARY SCHEDULE

- A. Certified employees shall be paid according to the salary schedule. CBA set forth in the Appendices, based on a 180 day work year unless changed by state law or Board action, which shall reflect both the salary and contributions to TRS and THIS. In the event of a change in the work year, either by Board action or state law, negotiations will be reopened to discuss salary compensation. In the event that an agreement is not reached, Article X, paragraph 11.1, "No Strike Clause" will be waived.
- B. Wage rates for non-certified employees shall be in accordance with the attached Wage Rate Schedule located in Appendices. Wages will be based upon an hourly wage.

7.3 SUPPLEMENTAL ASSIGNMENTS

- A. A listing of supplemental assignments and supplemental pay shall be set forth in Appendices. The listing does not require the Board to fill the position. If the position is filled, the Board shall pay the designated amount.
- B. Upon recommendation of the Administration and discussion with the Association, the Board of Education may establish a new extracurricular activity at a 1% stipend. The Board and Association will meet within the semester to determine an appropriate and fair stipend. Any activity/sport not already in the bargained agreement must go before the BOE for approval.
- C. Employees of the District shall choose to be paid in twenty-four (24) equal pays or a lump sum at the end of the activity. Individuals employed from the community shall be paid in a lump sum at the end of the activity.
- D. The years of experience awarded towards the salary factor for a head coach shall be negotiated between the DCMEA President, head coach, and the Superintendent.

7.4 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

Authorization for payroll deductions approved by the Board, other than those required legally and by the Agreement, shall be authorized by written consent of the employee on a form supplied by the District. Credit unions of the employee's choice shall be approved for payroll deductions. The Superintendent may establish reasonable regulations as deemed necessary to administer changes in deductions.

7.5 COMPENSATION TO ILLINOIS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. The Board shall pay directly to the Illinois Teachers' Retirement System (ITRS) the amount of contribution required to be paid on behalf of each employee and will shelter said amount for income tax purposes.
- B. The Board shall contribute the entire employee contribution to the Teacher Health Insurance Security (THIS) Fund.

7.6 IMRF CONTRIBUTION FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

The Board of Education agrees to contribute four and one-half percent of each employee's wages to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) on behalf of each employee as a tax-sheltered direct contribution.

7.7 PAY DAYS

- A. Certified and 12-month Employees (Every employee) shall be paid twice monthly in twenty-four equal payments. Pay days shall be the 15th and the last day of each month. If a regular pay date falls on a weekend, employees shall receive their checks on the last working weekday. (For example: 15th falls on a Sunday, employee paid on the preceding Friday).
- B. All district employees will have their paychecks deposited directly into their account via electronic submission. Employees must inform the District Office by completing the Direct Deposit Authorization forms and provide account information.
- C. Pay days shall be the 15th and the last day of each month. If a regular pay date falls on a weekend, employees shall receive their checks on the last working weekday. (For example: 15th falls on a Sunday, employee paid on the preceding Friday).

7.8 HOSPITALIZATION AND MAJOR MEDICAL INSURANCE

- A. The Board of Education will offer major medical and dental insurance to all district employees who work a minimum of 30 hours per week. The plan shall offer options of coverage for Employee Only, Employee and Spouse, Employee and Children, and Family; if available.
- B. A committee consisting of at least three members of the Association, two members of the Board, and the Superintendent will make an annual insurance plan recommendation to the Board. The Board of Education and the Association will develop a Memorandum of Understanding regarding the medical insurance costs, deductibles, and out-of-pocket expenses. The final decision concerning the insurance provider shall be determined by the Board.

7.9 FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

A flexible benefit plan to shelter child care, dental and medical expenses, and dental and health insurance premiums from taxes shall be provided by the Board. The employee must enroll in this program by September 1 of each school term and may not change the plan until the following September 1. This section of the Agreement is dependent upon the

required enrollment participation. Interested employees must complete the appropriate forms. The insurance committee will research optional plans and present the information for recommendation.

7.10 MILEAGE

Mileage will be reimbursed for work related travel. Requests for mileage reimbursement should be submitted on the Travel Voucher Form or with the Request for Reimbursement for Professional Development. Miles are to be tabulated from the building assignment to the location and back. The district will not reimburse miles to travel to work. Mileage shall be reimbursed at the rate established by the Internal Revenue Service. Mileage must be submitted on a monthly basis.

7.11 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMPLOYEES – REQUIRED COURSES

- A. The Board shall reimburse any certified employee the tuition where the employee has been required by the Superintendent to continue his/her education in order to qualify him/her to teach a particular subject in the District. Reimbursement shall be at a rate sufficient to cover the cost of tuition and required books. The employee must provide the district with actual receipts of expense to be reimbursed.
- B. The Board shall reimburse any non-certified employee the cost associated with training where the employee has been required by the Superintendent to continue his/her training in order to qualify him/her to maintain their current job classification. Reimbursement shall be at a rate sufficient to cover the cost of training and required books. The employee must provide the district with actual receipts of expense to be reimbursed.

7.12 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES - OTHER COURSES

- A. The Board will pay current Illinois State University (ISU) per hour tuition cost or actual tuition cost if less than the ISU per hour tuition cost, up to a maximum of nine (9) hours at that rate per teacher per year. The reimbursement year is defined as June 1 through May 31 or Summer, Fall, Spring Sessions.
- B. This is subject to a \$22,500 district maximum per year.
- C. Employees shall be reimbursed for tuition for college credit courses successfully completed as evidenced through a grade report with no less than a "B" grade or its equivalent under the following conditions:
 - 1. The course must be directly related to the employee's assigned field, student achievement, school improvement plan, or an additional endorsement or certification. In order to gain hours related to salary advancement, the course must also be part of an Illinois approved master's degree program or directly approved by the superintendent. If the course is not part of an Illinois approved master's degree program and is not specifically approved for salary advancement by the superintendent, the course can still be approved for reimbursement, but will only count for professional development hours, not salary advancement.

- 2. For employees that hold a masters degree, the course must be directly related to the employee's assigned field, student achievement, school improvement plan, or an additional endorsement or certification. The course does not have to be part of an Illinois approved masters degree program.
- 3. Approval must be obtained from the Superintendent prior to enrollment. Failure to obtain prior approval may result in the denial of hours counted towards salary scale advancement and/or tuition reimbursement. All approved courses should still be submitted for salary scale advancement even if tuition reimbursement is not available.
- 4. Any movement on the salary scale shall be made at the beginning of the next school term.
- 5. An updated copy of an employee's official transcript must be submitted to the Superintendent prior to any movement on the salary schedule.
- 6. The tuition reimbursement form must be submitted no later than the beginning of the next session. Ex: Courses taken in the fall must be submitted prior to the start of the spring semester.
- D. The employee must agree to work a minimum of two years in the district after completion of a degree program. Failure to do so will result in repayment to the district for reimbursed courses. Involuntary dismissal of employee excludes the employee from repayment of reimbursed courses.

7.13 STIPEND FOR STAFF DEVELOPMENT BY CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Certified employees will be paid \$25 per hour for up to three hours of preparation when presenting for professional development.
- B. Form ISBE 73-58 must be submitted and approved by the Superintendent prior to the project.
- C. Requests for reimbursement shall be submitted to the Superintendent with a completed ISBE form 73-58 and the reimbursement form at the conclusion of the project.

7.14 PART-TIME CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Part-time certified employees are expected to attend all institute days and parent-teacher conference days as part of their teaching assignment.
- B. Special assignment part-time certified employees will be compensated based upon the number of days or partial days worked in relationship to the school term. Example: An employee who works 86 days out of 180 days will be compensated at 47.77% of his/her placement on the salary schedule. An employee who works ½ days for 86 out of 180 days will be compensated at 23.88% of his/her placement on the salary schedule.

C. All compensations for part-time regular certified employees for grades P-12 shall be paid in proportion to the number of periods taught. Example: An employee who teaches three (3) classes during a seven period day will be paid 3/7 of his/her placement on the salary schedule.

7.15 ADDITIONAL CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- A. Any employee who substitutes during the school day shall be paid a percentage of the current substitute rate, based on the number of periods in the school day for the building in which the employee substitutes.
- B. A full-time certified employee who teaches an extra class at the P-12 level during his/her prep time will be paid per semester in accordance to his/her placement on the salary schedule and number of periods taught. Prep time is included in this percentage.
- C. A full-time high school certified employee who serves as an Independent-Study teacher at the high school level will be paid 1.0% per student per semester of his/her placement on the salary schedule up to a maximum of five (5) students when the student is assigned to the teacher during the teacher's prep period.
- D. The District will provide an annual stipend for Nationally Board Certified staff in the amount of \$1,500.

7.16 HOLIDAYS FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. All twelve (12) month non-certified employees shall receive paid holidays provided the holiday falls within his/her work year and the holiday has been established by the Board.
- B. A non-certified employee who works a paid holiday shall receive one and one-half $(1\frac{1}{2})$ times the employee's regular pay rate.
- C. It shall be to the discretion of the Superintendent if a holiday is to be observed, when said holiday falls on the weekend.

7.17 VACATION FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

A. Vacation time is awarded to twelve (12) month non-certified employees each July 1 for time worked from the previous July 1.

10 Vacation days per year
11 Vacation days per year
12 Vacation days per year
13 Vacation days per year
14 Vacation days per year
15 Vacation days per year

B. Vacation time earned in one fiscal year shall be used during that fiscal year or by the 1st of January of the following fiscal year, or the non-certified employee shall lose it.

- C. Non-certified employee terminating their employment shall be entitled to remuneration for the amount of vacation earned to the date of termination. If an employee terminates employment and has taken more vacation than the prorated amount, the employee shall have deducted from the last pay the amount entitled the Board.
- D. Request for vacations shall be submitted to the administrator to whom the employee is responsible at least five work days prior to the requested vacation days and must be approved by the Superintendent. Every effort shall be made to meet the desires of the employees and the needs of the school district in establishing vacation dates. Vacations shall be taken when school is not in session and not the week before school starts, except by special arrangements with the building Principal and/or Superintendent. The Superintendent shall keep a record of vacations earned and the dates taken.
- E. Years earned toward vacation credit may be carried to another classification with vacation. If transferring from a classification without vacation to one with vacation, years toward vacation will begin with the first day of employment in the new classification and full vacation privileges will commence on the anniversary date.

7.18 TIME SHEETS FOR NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. All full time and part time non-certified employees shall be required to keep a time sheet of hours worked. The following information must be included on the time sheet:
 - o Date
 - o Hours Worked
 - o Indicate Leave Sick, Personal, Vacation, etc.
 - Overtime (all overtime must be approved in advance by building Principal or Superintendent)
- B. Time sheets shall be signed by the employee and building Principal and/or Superintendent.

7.19 EXTRA-CURRICULAR DRIVING

All extracurricular driving is voluntary. Extra driving needs will be determined by the transportation director or administration based on need. Coaches and sponsors who drive a bus will be paid for the entirety of the trip. Coaches and sponsors who request to drive the bus to their activity will be given first priority. No hourly employee may drive extracurricular trips if it puts them into Over-Time status without expressed consent of the Superintendent.

7.20 RETIREMENT INCENTIVE

Teachers with twenty (20) or more years of consecutive service in the district are eligible to receive additional benefits under the terms of this Early Retirement Incentive (ERI) as they approach retirement. To be eligible for the ERI, the teacher must retire during a specified window period. Specifically, the teacher may receive this ERI if he or she retires at the end of a school year beginning with the school year that he or she is eligible to receive a retirement annuity from TRS and ending at the first of the following to occur:

- (1) at the end of the school year in which he or she first becomes eligible for a non-discounted annuity from TRS (including applicable credit for military services, or alternate pension systems); or
- at the end of the school year (July 1 June 30) in which the teacher reaches age 60.

In determining these dates, teachers must consider and utilize all or part of their available sick leave for creditable service purposes in TRS.

In order to receive the additional compensation available under this Early Retirement Incentive, eligible employees must deliver a non-revocable letter of resignation without contingency to the Superintendent no later than June 15th prior to the school year the incentive will begin. Notwithstanding this general deadline of June 15th, teachers electing the Early Retirement Incentive in 2021 shall be allowed to submit their non-revocable letter of retirement no later than August 15th. The letter of resignation must reference an intent to retire under this Early Retirement Incentive Policy, whether the teacher's elected ERI plan is for three years, two years or one year, and be accompanied by the TRS member requested "Personal Statement of Benefits" and a "Benefit Estimate" indicating total years of service.

Teachers who elect to receive this Early Retirement Incentive by submitting a timely resignation as provided above shall be entitled to an increase in salary during the final three years, two years or one year of employment. Such teachers will receive the salary increase set forth in this Section 7.20 rather than the general negotiated salary increase during their last three, two or one year(s) of employment dependent on their elected ERI plan and will be paid as follows: The teacher's TRS Creditable Salary for the year preceding the onset of the elected ERI Plan shall be increased by six percent (6%) and each year thereafter, if applicable, the prior year's TRS Creditable Salary shall be increased by an additional six percent for a maximum of three years.

The district shall endeavor to spread the increase throughout the school year. However, the district retains the right to make necessary adjustments to monthly pay at any time during the last three years to insure that the total received by the teacher is consistent with this Section. For purposes of this Section, a Teacher's "TRS Creditable Salary" means the teacher's base salary together with all other amounts from all sources which are creditable earnings under TRS rules.

Notwithstanding the above, teachers who are removed for cause or who voluntarily discontinue an extra-duty assignment during any of the elected plan years of employment shall have their yearly increase for that year reduced by the amount of pay for the extra duty assignment. The term "year" shall mean "school year" and not "calendar year".

In the event that a teacher's resignation date under this policy contemplated use of sick leave benefits for creditable service purposes and the teacher subsequently uses all or a portion of his or her available sick leave days and does not have enough remaining sick leave days available upon the contemplated retirement date to retire without a discounted

annuity, the teacher's resignation shall be automatically revoked and the teacher shall, subject to his or her health condition, continue employment until such time that he or she is eligible to retire at the end of a school year without a discounted annuity.

Notwithstanding the above, teachers who submit a letter of resignation to obtain the retirement incentive and subsequently experience a divorce, death of spouse, or permanent disability affecting job performance of a spouse prior to retirement shall have the right to rescind their letter of resignation prior to the contemplated retirement date. In such event, the teacher shall be obligated to reimburse the district for the amount of the incentive less what the teacher would have received had the teacher not been eligible for the retirement incentive. Under such circumstances, the district is authorized to make deductions from subsequent paychecks in the maximum amount of 5% of the amount the teacher has received in retirement incentive to be reimbursed per pay period.

In the event the Illinois Pension Code, regulations promulgated by TRS, or TRS interpretations are made, changed or modified during the effective period of this Agreement and such interpretations or modifications have the effect of requiring employer or member contributions under this ERI, the parties shall engage in mid-term bargaining to amend this ERI in such a way that no employer or member costs shall be incurred.

In the event an alternative retirement incentive for teachers is made available by statute, a retiring teacher may choose between this early retirement incentive and any available alternative.

7.21 STIPEND FOR REQUIRED TEACHER TRAINING FOR AP CLASSES

Teachers who attend required training to teach AP classes at the request of the District shall be paid a one-time stipend of \$400.

Teachers who previously attended such training shall receive the stipend within 30 days of contract execution, but no earlier than July 1, 2021.

ARTICLE VIII - EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

8.1 PURPOSE

The purpose of evaluation is to improve job performance for all employees and the quality of instruction for certified staff and support staff.

8.2 GENERAL GUIDELINES

A. At the beginning of the school term or two (2) weeks after employment, if employed after the start of the school term, the District will provide written notice to all teachers subject to evaluation that year. The written notice shall include: a copy of the job description; a copy of the mutually agreed upon evaluation instrument; a summary of the manner in which measures of student growth and professional practice relate to the final performance rating; a summary of the procedures related to the creation of a professional development plan and remediation plan. The Principal or qualified administrator, for building employees, and the

- Superintendent, for district employees, will conduct a conference with each employee regarding job expectations prior to any evaluation of performance.
- B. The evaluation form will be used to report to the Superintendent and Board of Education. The evaluation instrument and the relative importance of each portion of the framework to the final profession practice rating may be revised at any time by the mutual agreement of the Association and the Superintendent.
- C. Any grievance filed relative to this Article shall be limited to violations of the specific procedures as outlined below or outlined in the evaluation documents. All other aspects of evaluation, including but not limited to criteria, instruments, or personalities shall not be grievable.

8.3 FORMAL OBSERVATION PROCESS FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

- A. Each tenured certified employee shall receive at least one formal evaluation at least every two years by a qualified administrator. Each non-tenured teacher shall receive at least two observations and a formal evaluation every year by a qualified administrator.
- B. All formal observations of classroom performance will be done openly with the full knowledge of the certified employee.
- C. The formal observation cycle shall be defined as follows:
 - 1. At least three (3) work days prior to the observation, unless mutually agreed otherwise, a pre-conference between evaluator and employee will be held to include a review of the expectations of the parties and an agreement on days and times of formal observation. The employee will provide, prior to the observation, all requested information (lesson plans, assignments, tests, etc.) needed to effectively evaluate the instructional process.
 - 2. Prior to reducing the evaluation to writing and within five (5) work days following the observation, the evaluator and the employee will have a post-observation(s) conference.
 - 3. The observation summary will be reduced to writing within five (5) work days of the post-conference; and, the evaluator will meet with the employee and review the observation. At this meeting, which will be at least 30 calendar days prior to the end of the school year, the employee will sign the formal written evaluation and be given a copy. A copy of the formal written evaluation will be placed in the employee's District personnel file in the Unit Office.
 - 4. If the employee disagrees with the observation summary, he/she may submit written reasons for his/her disagreement with the evaluator within five (5) work days after receiving a copy of the written evaluation. A copy of the written reasons for the employee's disagreement will be attached to the observation summary and placed in the personnel file in the Unit office.

8.4 INFORMAL OBSERVATION FOR CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

The establishment of formal observation procedures does not limit the right of the administration to use informal observations of certified employees to determine competencies. Informal, drop-in visits are appropriate at any time without written data collection. If a written record is kept, the employee will receive a copy within five (5) working days.

- A. The results of informal observations, when unsatisfactory, must be made known to the teacher at a conference within five (5) working days after the informal observation.
- B. The employee shall receive a signed copy of any written documentation concerning the informal observation within five (5) work days of the conference. The written evaluation may be placed in the employee's personnel file in the District Office.
- C. If the employee disagrees with the informal observation summary, he/she may submit written reasons for the disagreement with the evaluator within five (5) work days after receipt of the written informal evaluation. A copy of the written reasons for the employee's disagreement will be attached to the written observation summary and placed in the employee's personnel file in the Unit office.

8.5 UNSATISFACTORY EVALUATIONS OF CERTIFIED EMPLOYEES

Any teacher receiving an unsatisfactory rating will be placed on a remediation plan as provided by Article 5/24A of the Illinois School Code. This section does apply to unsatisfactory ratings during or at the conclusion of a remediation plan.

8.6 NON-CERTIFIED EMPLOYEE EVALUATION PROCEDURES

- A. The supervisor of every employee shall have continuing informal evaluation and constructive suggestions toward improvement of performance. In addition to continuing informal evaluation there shall be an established formal evaluation procedure. Each support staff employee shall receive a formal evaluation at least every two years by a qualified administrator. Each support staff member with four years or less experience shall receive a formal evaluation every year by a qualified administrator.
- B. A job description and the evaluation instrument will be established by the administration for each job classification with specifics for each building. Each employee will be formally evaluated, and a copy of the written evaluation given to and discussed with the employee and a copy placed in the employees personnel file.
- C. Any concerns will be documented in writing, a copy given to the employee, and a copy placed in the employee's personnel file. Any disciplinary action shall be progressive except in situations where proof of conduct is conclusively determined to warrant more serious consequences.

ARTICLE IX – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

9.1 **DEFINITION OF GRIEVANCE**

A grievance is defined as a claim by the Association that there has been an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication by the District of any provision of this Agreement.

9.2 PROCEDURE

Any employee, group of employees, or Association may institute a grievance. Both parties will make a good faith effort to resolve grievances in an informal, verbal discussion within ten (10) work days after the occurrence giving rise to the concern. When requested by the employee, an Association representative may accompany the employee to assist in the informal resolution of the concern. When this cannot be accomplished, a grievance shall be processed as follows:

Step 1

Within ten (10) working days of the alleged violation the grievant shall present the grievance in writing to the building Principal, who will arrange for a meeting to discuss the alleged violation within ten (10) working days. The formal written grievance shall specifically state the contract article, section, and clause/paragraph alleged to have been violated and the remedy requested. A diligent effort shall be made to adjust the grievance at this step. The Principal shall have ten (10) working days to give a written response including the reasons for the decision.

Step 2

If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the Association's Representative shall submit the grievance to the Superintendent within ten (10) working days after receipt of the Principal's Step 1 response. The written grievance shall state the facts involved in the grievance and the contract provisions allegedly violated by the District and resolution requested. The Superintendent shall give a written response and a brief explanation of reasons within ten (10) working days after receipt of such written grievance.

Step 3

If the written grievance as submitted in Step 2 has not been satisfactorily settled, it shall be referred in writing by the Association's Representative to the President of the Board. This writing shall state in what respects the Step 2 answer is inconsistent with this Agreement. Such submission shall be made within ten (10) working days after the receipt of the response from the Superintendent. The Board or its designated representative shall submit a written response with a brief explanation of its reasons within ten (10) working days following its next regular Board meeting.

Step 4

If the grievance cannot be settled at the third step, the grievance will be submitted to an Interest Based Problem Solving process. The District and the Association with the use of facilitator shall explore settling the grievance using the principals the Interest Based Problem Solving process. There will be up to a four members allowed in each team with one member of the Board team being a Board member.

Step 5

If the written grievance has not been satisfactorily settled by the operation of the grievance procedure as outlined hereinabove, the Association shall have the right, upon notification to the District in writing within fifteen (15) working days after the answer is given in Step 3, to submit the grievance to arbitration. The parties will make a sincere effort to mutually agree upon an arbitrator within five working days after the notice is received. If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, the Director of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service will be requested to supply a list of seven arbitrators, from which list each party alternatively shall strike one name provided; however, either party may reject the first list submitted in its entirety and request a second list. The Association shall choose first until one arbitrator remains on the list. On alternate arbitration cases when it is necessary to select an arbitrator in this manner, the District shall choose first until one arbitrator remains on the list. The arbitrator shall be designated to hear the grievance, and his decision shall be final and binding. The arbitrator shall not have the right to add to or subtract from the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The fee and expenses of the arbitrator and the cost of the transcript of the proceedings for the arbitrator's use, if he desires it, shall be borne equally by the District and the Association provided; however, the fees and expenses of witnesses, the cost of documentary evidence and matters of that nature shall in all cases be borne by the parties procuring the same.

9.3 GRIEVANCE TIME LIMIT

Grievances not instituted or appealed within the time limits stipulated shall expire and be forfeited unless the time limits are extended by mutual agreement of the District and the Association in writing.

9.4 NO WRITTEN RESPONSE

If the District or any of its representatives fails to give a timely response to a grievance, the grievance may immediately be appealed to the next step of the grievance procedure.

9.5 CLASS GRIEVANCE / BYPASS

Class grievance involving more than one employee or supervisor and grievances involving an administrator at the building level, may be initially filed as Step 2. By mutual agreement in writing, any step of the grievance procedure may be bypassed.

9.6 FILING OF GRIEVANCE MATERIALS

All records related to a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the employees.

9.7 CLAIM IN OTHER FORM

If the Association or employee files any claim or complaint in any form other than the grievance procedure in this Agreement, the District shall not be required to process the same claim or set of facts through the grievance procedure.

9.8 COOPERATION

The administration, Association, and all employees shall cooperate in the investigation of a grievance.

9.9 GRIEVANCE WITHDRAWN OR SETTLEMENT

A grievance may be withdrawn or settled at any level without establishing a precedent.

ARTICLE X – SCHOOL OPERATIONS

10.1 NO STRIKE CLAUSE

The Association agrees there shall be no strike, sympathy strike, withholding of services, slow down, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, other refusal to render full and complete service to District #701, or any unlawful interference with school operations during the term of this Agreement or any extension of it.

10.2 DISTRICT'S EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO MANAGE

Except as specifically restricted by the express language of this Agreement, the Board retains the exclusive right to manage District #701 and direct the work force in the manner it determines to be in the best interest of the School District pursuant to its statutory authority and responsibility.

10.3 SUBCONTRACTING

District #701 retains the right to subcontract job classifications provided the Deer Creek-Mackinaw Educational Association/IEA-NEA receives 90 days prior written notification of acceptance of bids; and, is given an opportunity to work with the Board of Education to remedy the situation during that 90 day period by some other means than subcontracting.

ARTICLE XI – EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

11.1 COMPLETE UNDERSTANDING

The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding between the parties. The terms and conditions may be modified only through the written mutual consent of the parties.

11.2 INCORPORATION OF BOARD POLICIES

The policies and procedures of District #701 are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, provided that these policies and procedures may neither countermand nor be contrary to the express terms of this Agreement. The District will provide the Association with a copy of all proposed policies before the first reading. The District will engage in discussions with the Association if the Association brings forward concerns about any Board policy. Board policies will not be subject to grievance.

11.3 INCLUSION AND SAVING CLAUSE

Should any article, section, or clause of this Agreement be declared unlawful or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the Board of Education and the Association shall agree to bargain revisions that would bring the provision into compliance with the law. The remaining articles, sections and clauses shall remain in full force and effect.

11.4 CONFORMITY TO LAW

The parties agree that applicable Illinois statutory and case law and the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Illinois are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. No provision of this agreement shall supplant or supersede the laws of the State of Illinois or the United States.

11.5 DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective 2021 and shall continue in effect until 2025. This Agreement may be reopened by either party if legislation regarding school funding/financing is passed that impacts the Association or the Board of Education.

Deer Creek-Mackinaw Education Association/IEA-NEA	Deer Creek-Mackinaw CUSD No. 701 Board of Education
President Massi	President Shuyl Dais
Secretary or Representative	Secretary June 4 2021
Date	Date



SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE

APPENDIX A - SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE

Following is the list of extra duty assignments which provide supplemental pay. The Board of Education may at its discretion establish extracurricular activities and stipends.

The amount of pay for each job is the stated percentage of the District's base salary (BA-Step 1). For each year of experience in a specific duty position within the District, an employee's extra duty pay will be increased according to the following experience factor schedule.

First Year	1.00
Second Year	1.15
Third Year	1.20
Fourth Year	1.50
Fifth Year	1.60
Sixth to Tenth Year	1.70
Eleventh to Fifteenth Year	1.80
Sixteenth to Twentieth Year	1.90
Twenty-one Plus Years	2.00

Example: A first assistant football coach who is entering his third year in that position would receive salary as figured; base salary times 6.5% times 1.20.

If more than one employee shares one extra duty assignment, the listed percentage shall be divided equally between the employees. This percentage will then be multiplied by each individual employee's experience factor.

High School

	5.5%
4. Third Assistant Football	
5. Head Varsity Basketball 1	1.0%
6. Assistant Basketball	5.5%
8. Head Wrestling9. Assistant Wrestling	5.5% 11.0% 5.5% 10.0%
11. Assistant Baseball 6	5.0%
12. Head Girls' Varsity Basketball 1	1.0%
13. Assistant Girls' Basketball 6	5.5%

	** 1 01 1 1 1 1 1	11.00/	
14.	Head Girls' Volleyball	11.0%	
		C 50/	
15.	Assistant Girls' Volleyball	6.5%	
	1 01 1 1 2 1 0 0 1 1	10.00/	
16.	Head Girls' Varsity Softball	10.0%	
17.	Assistant Girls' Softball	6.0%	
18.	Head Track (Boys and Girls)	10.0%	
19.	Head Track (Boys and Girls)	10.0%	
20.	Head Cross Country	10.0%	
21.	Bass Fishing	1.0%	
22.	Yearbook Sponsor	5.0%	
23.	Cheerleader Sponsor		
	a. Fall	3.5%	
	b. Winter	4.5%	
24.	Dance Sponsor	4.0%	
25.	Family and Consumer Science	4.0%	
26.	Sophomore Class Sponsor	1.0%	
27.	Freshman Class Sponsor	1.0%	
28.	Junior Class Sponsor	5.0%	
29.	Senior Class Sponsor	1.0%	
30.	Student Council	5.0%	
31.	National Honor Society	4.0%	
32.	Scholastic Bowl	3.0%	
33.	High School Flags	1.0%	
34.	High School Drama	3.0%	
35.	High School Assistant Drama	1.5%	
36.	Chorus	2.5%	
37.	Band/Pep Band/Marching Band	6.0%	
38.	Art Club	2.0%	
39.	Future Business Leaders	4.0%	
40.	Drama Club	2.0%	
41.	Technology Club	3.0%	
42.	WYSE	1.0%	
43.	Assistant Student Council	3.0%	
43. 44.	Assist. (2nd) Girls' Basketball	6.5%	
	` '	0.370	
Junior H	Head Baseball	5.0%	
2.	Assistant Baseball	2.5%	
۷.	Assistant Dascoan	2.570	
3.	Head Girls' Softball	5.0%	
3. 4.	Assistant Girls' Softball	2.5%	
4. 5.	Boys' Basketball (8 th)	7.0%	
	•		
6.	Boys' Basketball (7 th)	7.0%	
7.	Hand Wrastling	8.0%	
7. 8.	Head Wrestling		
	Assistant Wrestling	5.0%	
9.	Girls' Basketball (8th)	6.0%	
10.	Girls' Basketball (7 th)	6.0%	

11.	Girls' Volleyball (8th)	7.0%
12.	Girls' Volleyball (7th)	7.0%
13.	Head Track (Boys)	6.0%
14.	Head Track (Girls)	6.0%
15.	Assistant Track (boys and girls)	3.0%
16.	Cheerleader Sponsor	2.0%
17.	Dance Sponsor	2.0%
18.	Band	2.5%
19.	Chorus	2.5%
20.	Student Council	2.0%
21.	Literary	2.0%
22.	Yearbook Sponsor	1.5%
23.	Scholastic Bowl	2.0%
24.	Drama	2.0%
25.	Assistant Drama	1.0%
26.	Head Cross Country	6.0%

Intermediate School

1.	Band and Chorus	2.5%
2.	Yearbook	1.5%

Other

1.	Score Keepers	Minimum of \$25.00 per event
2.	Time Keepers	Minimum of \$25.00 per event
3.	Bus Chaperone	Minimum of \$25.00 per event
4.	Detention	•
	Monday-Friday (1 hour)	Minimum of \$15.00 A.M./P.M.
5.	Saturday Morning Detention	4 hours = current sub rate 2 hours = half current sub rate



APPENDIX B

SALARY AND WAGE SCHEDULES

2021-2022 TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE W/TRS

STEP	BS	BS+8	BS+16	BS+24	BS+32	NAC.	146.0	1.00.10	·		1
1	\$38,611	\$39,576	\$40,542	\$41,507	\$41,893	MS	MS+8	MS+16	MS+24	MS+32	MS+40
2	\$39,541	\$40,506	\$41,472	\$42,437		\$42,472	\$43,437	\$44,403	\$45,368	\$46,333	\$47,298
3	\$40,471	\$41,436	\$42,402	\$43,367	\$42,823	\$43,402	\$44,367	\$45,333	\$46,298	\$47,263	\$48,228
4	\$41,401	\$42,366	\$43,332		\$43,753	\$44,332	\$45,297	\$46,263	\$47,228	\$48,193	\$49,158
5	\$42,331	\$43,296	\$44,262	\$44,297	\$44,683	\$45,262	\$46,227	\$47,193	\$48,158	\$49,123	\$50,088
6	\$43,261	\$44,226	\$45,192	\$45,227	\$45,613	\$46,192	\$47,157	\$48,123	\$49,088	\$50,053	\$51,018
7	\$44,191	\$45,156	\$46,122	\$46,157	\$46,543	\$47,122	\$48,087	\$49,053	\$50,018	\$50,983	\$51,948
8	\$45,121	\$46,086	\$47,052	\$47,087	\$47,473	\$48,052	\$49,017	\$49,983	\$50,948	\$51,913	\$52,878
9	\$46,051	\$47,016	\$47,982		\$48,403	\$48,982	\$49,947	\$50,913	\$51,878	\$52,843	\$53,808
10	\$46,981	\$47,946		\$48,947	\$49,333	\$49,912	\$50,877	\$51,843	\$52,808	\$53,773	\$54,738
11	\$47,911	\$48,876	\$48,912	\$49,877	\$50,263	\$50,842	\$51,807	\$52,773	\$53,738	\$54,703	\$55,668
12	\$48,841	\$49,806	\$49,842	\$50,807	\$51,193	\$51,772	\$52,737	\$53,703	\$54,668	\$55,633	\$56,598
13	\$49,771	\$50,736	\$50,772	\$51,737	\$52,123	\$52,702	\$53,667	\$54,633	\$55,598	\$56,563	\$57,528
14	\$50,701		\$51,702	\$52,667	\$53,053	\$53,632	\$54,597	\$55,563	\$56,528	\$57,493	\$58,458
15		\$51,666	\$52,632	\$53,597	\$53,983	\$54,562	\$55,527	\$56,493	\$57,458	\$58,423	\$59,388
16	\$51,631	\$52,596	\$53,562	\$54,527	\$54,913	\$55,492	\$56,457	\$57,423	\$58,388	\$59,353	\$60,318
17	\$52,561	\$53,526	\$54,492	\$55,457	\$55,843	\$56,422	\$57,387	\$58,353	\$59,318	\$60,283	\$61,248
18	\$53,491	\$54,456	\$55,422	\$56,387	\$56,773	\$57,352	\$58,317	\$59,283	\$60,248	\$61,213	\$62,178
19	\$54,421	\$55,386	\$56,352	\$57,317	\$57,703	\$58,282	\$59,247	\$60,213	\$61,178	\$62,143	\$63,108
20	\$55,351	\$56,316	\$57,282	\$58,247	\$58,633	\$59,212	\$60,177	\$61,143	\$62,108	\$63,073	\$64,038
21	\$56,281	\$57,246	\$58,212	\$59,177	\$59,563	\$60,142	\$61,107	\$62,073	\$63,038	\$64,003	\$64,968
	\$57,211	\$58,176	\$59,142	\$60,107	\$60,493	\$61,072	\$62,037	\$63,003	\$63,968	\$64,933	\$65,898
22	\$58,141	\$59,106	\$60,072	\$61,037	\$61,423	\$62,002	\$62,967	\$63,933	\$64,898	\$65,863	\$66,828
23	\$59,071	\$60,036	\$61,002	\$61,967	\$62,353	\$62,932	\$63,897	\$64,863	\$65,828	\$66,793	\$67,758
24	\$60,001	\$60,966	\$61,932	\$62,897	\$63,283	\$63,862	\$64,827	\$65,793	\$66,758	\$67,723	\$68,688
25	\$60,931	\$61,896	\$62,862	\$63,827	\$64,213	\$64,792	\$65,757	\$66,723	\$67,688	\$68,653	\$69,618
26		\$62,826	\$63,792	\$64,757	\$65,143	\$65,722	\$66,687	\$67,653	\$68,618	\$69,583	\$70,548
27		\$63,756	\$64,722	\$65,687	\$66,073	\$66,652	\$67,617	\$68,583	\$69,548	\$70,513	\$71,478
28			\$65,652	\$66,617	\$67,003	\$67,582	\$68,547	\$69,513	\$70,478	\$71,443	\$72,408
29			\$66,582	\$67,547	\$67,933	\$68,512	\$69,477	\$70,443	\$71,408	\$72,373	\$73,338
30				\$68,477	\$68,863	\$69,442	\$70,407	\$71,373	\$72,338	\$73,303	\$74,268
31				\$69,407	\$69,793	\$70,372	\$71,337	\$72,303	\$73,268	\$74,233	\$75,198
32		,			\$70,723	\$71,302	\$72,267	\$73,233	\$74,198	\$75,163	\$76,128
33					\$71,653	\$72,232	\$73,197	\$74,163	\$75,128	\$76,093	\$77,058
34						\$73,162	\$74,127	\$75,093	\$76,058	\$77,023	\$77,988
35						\$74,092	\$75,057	\$76,023	\$76,988	\$77,953	\$78,918

Pychologists and social workers will receive a minimum raise of \$1,650 based on 1.0 FTE. The minimum raise for part-time and employees working more than 180 days shall be adjusted pro-rata. Also, Employee 10397 shall receive an annual salary of \$71,204 in the 2021-2022 school year.

2022-2023 TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE W/TRS

STEP	BS	BS+8	BS+16	BS+24	BS+32	MS	MS+8	MS+16	MS+24	MS+32	MS+40
1	\$39,311	\$40,294	\$41,277	\$42,259	\$42,652	\$43,242	\$44,225	\$45,208	\$46,190	\$47,173	\$48,156
2	\$40,241	\$41,224	\$42,207	\$43,189	\$43,582	\$44,172	\$45,155	\$46,138	\$47,120	\$48,103	\$49,086
3	\$41,171	\$42,154	\$43,137	\$44,119	\$44,512	\$45,102	\$46,085	\$47,068	\$48,050	\$49,033	\$50,016
4	\$42,101	\$43,084	\$44,067	\$45,049	\$45,442	\$46,032	\$47,015	\$47,998	\$48,980	\$49,963	\$50,946
5	\$43,031	\$44,014	\$44,997	\$45,979	\$46,372	\$46,962	\$47,945	\$48,928	\$49,910	\$50,893	\$51,876
6	\$43,961	\$44,944	\$45,927	\$46,909	\$47,302	\$47,892	\$48,875	\$49,858	\$50,840	\$51,823	\$52,806
7	\$44,891	\$45,874	\$46,857	\$47,839	\$48,232	\$48,822	\$49,805	\$50,788	\$51,770	\$52,753	\$53,736
8	\$45,821	\$46,804	\$47,787	\$48,769	\$49,162	\$49,752	\$50,735	\$51,718	\$52,700	\$53,683	\$54,666
9	\$46,751	\$47,734	\$48,717	\$49,699	\$50,092	\$50,682	\$51,665	\$52,648	\$53,630	\$54,613	\$55,596
10	\$47,681	\$48,664	\$49,647	\$50,629	\$51,022	\$51,612	\$52,595	\$53,578	\$54,560	\$55,543	\$56,526
11	\$48,611	\$49,594	\$50,577	\$51,559	\$51,952	\$52,542	\$53,525	\$54,508	\$55,490	\$56,473	\$57,456
12	\$49,541	\$50,524	\$51,507	\$52,489	\$52,882	\$53,472	\$54,455	\$55,438	\$56,420	\$57,403	\$58,386
13	\$50,471	\$51,454	\$52,437	\$53,419	\$53,812	\$54,402	\$55,385	\$56,368	\$57,350	\$58,333	\$59,316
14	\$51,401	\$52,384	\$53,367	\$54,349	\$54,742	\$55,332	\$56,315	\$57,298	\$58,280	\$59,263	\$60,246
15	\$52,331	\$53,314	\$54,297	\$55,279	\$55,672	\$56,262	\$57,245	\$58,228	\$59,210	\$60,193	\$61,176
16	\$53,261	\$54,244	\$55,227	\$56,209	\$56,602	\$57,192	\$58,175	\$59,158	\$60,140	\$61,123	\$62,106
17	\$54,191	\$55,174	\$56,157	\$57,139	\$57,532	\$58,122	\$59,105	\$60,088	\$61,070	\$62,053	\$63,036
18	\$55,121	\$56,104	\$57,087	\$58,069	\$58,462	\$59,052	\$60,035	\$61,018	\$62,000	\$62,983	\$63,966
19	\$56,051	\$57,034	\$58,017	\$58,999	\$59,392	\$59,982	\$60,965	\$61,948	\$62,930	\$63,913	\$64,896
20	\$56,981	\$57,964	\$58,947	\$59,929	\$60,322	\$60,912	\$61,895	\$62,878	\$63,860	\$64,843	\$65,826
21	\$57,911	\$58,894	\$59,877	\$60,859	\$61,252	\$61,842	\$62,825	\$63,808	\$64,790	\$65,773	\$66,756
22	\$58,841	\$59,824	\$60,807	\$61,789	\$62,182	\$62,772	\$63,755	\$64,738	\$65,720	\$66,703	\$67,686
23	\$59,771	\$60,754	\$61,737	\$62,719	\$63,112	\$63,702	\$64,685	\$65,668	\$66,650	\$67,633	\$68,616
24	\$60,701	\$61,684	\$62,667	\$63,649	\$64,042	\$64,632	\$65,615	\$66,598	\$67,580	\$68,563	\$69,546
25	\$61,631	\$62,614	\$63,597	\$64,579	\$64,972	\$65,562	\$66,545	\$67,528	\$68,510	\$69,493	\$70,476
26		\$63,544	\$64,527	\$65,509	\$65,902	\$66,492	\$67,475	\$68,458	\$69,440	\$70,423	\$71,406
27		\$64,474	\$65,457	\$66,439	\$66,832	\$67,422	\$68,405	\$69,388	\$70,370	\$71,353	\$72,336
28			\$66,387	\$67,369	\$67,762	\$68,352	\$69,335	\$70,318	\$71,300	\$72,283	\$73,266
29			\$67,317	\$68,299	\$68,692	\$69,282	\$70,265	\$71,248	\$72,230	\$73,213	\$74,196
30				\$69,229	\$69,622	\$70,212	\$71,195	\$72,178	\$73,160	\$74,143	\$75,126
31				\$70,159	\$70,552	\$71,142	\$72,125	\$73,108	\$74,090	\$75,073	\$76,056
32					\$71,482	\$72,072	\$73,055	\$74,038	\$75,020	\$76,003	\$76,986
33					\$72,412	\$73,002	\$73,985	\$74,968	\$75,950	\$76,933	\$77,916
34						\$73,932	\$74,915	\$75,898	\$76,880	\$77,863	\$78,846
35						\$74,862	\$75,845	\$76,828	\$77,810	\$78,793	\$79,776

Pychologists and social workers will receive a minimum raise of \$1,650 based on 1.0 FTE. The minimum raise for part-time and employees working more than 180 days shall be adjusted pro-rata.

2023-2024 TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE W/TRS

STEP	BS	BS+8	BS+16	BS+24	BS+32	MS	MS+8	MS+16	MS+24	MS+32	MC . 40
1	\$40,011	\$41,011	\$42,012	\$43,012	\$43,412	\$44,012	\$45,012	\$46,013	\$47,013	\$48,013	MS+40
2	\$40,941	\$41,941	\$42,942	\$43,942	\$44,342	\$44,942	\$45,942	\$46,943	\$47,943	THE PARTY	\$49,013
3	\$41,871	\$42,871	\$43,872	\$44,872	\$45,272	\$45,872	\$46,872	\$47,873		\$48,943	\$49,943
4	\$42,801	\$43,801	\$44,802	\$45,802	\$46,202	\$46,802	\$47,802	\$48,803	\$48,873 \$49,803	\$49,873	\$50,873
5	\$43,731	\$44,731	\$45,732	\$46,732	\$47,132	\$47,732	\$48,732	\$49,733	\$50,733	\$50,803	\$51,803
6	\$44,661	\$45,661	\$46,662	\$47,662	\$48,062	\$48,662	\$49,662	\$50,663	\$51,663	\$51,733	\$52,733
7	\$45,591	\$46,591	\$47,592	\$48,592	\$48,992	\$49,592	\$50,592	\$51,593	\$52,593	\$52,663 \$53,593	\$53,663
8	\$46,521	\$47,521	\$48,522	\$49,522	\$49,922	\$50,522	\$51,522	\$52,523	\$53,523	\$54,523	\$54,593
9	\$47,451	\$48,451	\$49,452	\$50,452	\$50,852	\$51,452	\$52,452	\$53,453	\$54,453		\$55,523
10	\$48,381	\$49,381	\$50,382	\$51,382	\$51,782	\$52,382	\$53,382	\$54,383	\$55,383	\$55,453 \$56,383	\$56,453
11	\$49,311	\$50,311	\$51,312	\$52,312	\$52,712	\$53,312	\$54,312	\$55,313	\$56,313	\$57,313	\$57,383
12	\$50,241	\$51,241	\$52,242	\$53,242	\$53,642	\$54,242	\$55,242	\$56,243	\$57,243	\$58,243	\$58,313
13	\$51,171	\$52,171	\$53,172	\$54,172	\$54,572	\$55,172	\$56,172	\$57,173	\$58,173	\$59,173	\$59,243
14	\$52,101	\$53,101	\$54,102	\$55,102	\$55,502	\$56,102	\$57,102	\$58,103	\$59,103	\$60,103	\$60,173 \$61,103
15	\$53,031	\$54,031	\$55,032	\$56,032	\$56,432	\$57,032	\$58,032	\$59,033	\$60,033	\$61,033	\$62,033
16	\$53,961	\$54,961	\$55,962	\$56,962	\$57,362	\$57,962	\$58,962	\$59,963	\$60,963	\$61,963	\$62,963
17	\$54,891	\$55,891	\$56,892	\$57,892	\$58,292	\$58,892	\$59,892	\$60,893	\$61,893	\$62,893	\$63,893
18	\$55,821	\$56,821	\$57,822	\$58,822	\$59,222	\$59,822	\$60,822	\$61,823	\$62,823	\$63,823	\$64,823
19	\$56,751	\$57,751	\$58,752	\$59,752	\$60,152	\$60,752	\$61,752	\$62,753	\$63,753	\$64,753	\$65,753
20	\$57,681	\$58,681	\$59,682	\$60,682	\$61,082	\$61,682	\$62,682	\$63,683	\$64,683	\$65,683	\$66,683
21	\$58,611	\$59,611	\$60,612	\$61,612	\$62,012	\$62,612	\$63,612	\$64,613	\$65,613	\$66,613	\$67,613
22	\$59,541	\$60,541	\$61,542	\$62,542	\$62,942	\$63,542	\$64,542	\$65,543	\$66,543	\$67,543	\$68,543
23	\$60,471	\$61,471	\$62,472	\$63,472	\$63,872	\$64,472	\$65,472	\$66,473	\$67,473	\$68,473	\$69,473
24	\$61,401	\$62,401	\$63,402	\$64,402	\$64,802	\$65,402	\$66,402	\$67,403	\$68,403	\$69,403	\$70,403
25	\$62,331	\$63,331	\$64,332	\$65,332	\$65,732	\$66,332	\$67,332	\$68,333	\$69,333	\$70,333	\$71,333
26		\$64,261	\$65,262	\$66,262	\$66,662	\$67,262	\$68,262	\$69,263	\$70,263	\$71,263	\$72,263
27		\$65,191	\$66,192	\$67,192	\$67,592	\$68,192	\$69,192	\$70,193	\$71,193	\$72,193	\$73,193
28			\$67,122	\$68,122	\$68,522	\$69,122	\$70,122	\$71,123	\$72,123	\$73,123	\$74,123
29			\$68,052	\$69,052	\$69,452	\$70,052	\$71,052	\$72,053	\$73,053	\$74,053	\$75,053
30				\$69,982	\$70,382	\$70,982	\$71,982	\$72,983	\$73,983	\$74,983	\$75,983
31				\$70,912	\$71,312	\$71,912	\$72,912	\$73,913	\$74,913	\$75,913	\$76,913
32					\$72,242	\$72,842	\$73,842	\$74,843	\$75,843	\$76,843	\$77,843
33					\$73,172	\$73,772	\$74,772	\$75,773	\$76,773	\$77,773	\$78,773
34						\$74,702	\$75,702	\$76,703	\$77,703	\$78,703	\$79,703
35						\$75,632	\$76,632	\$77,633	\$78,633	\$79,633	\$80,633

Pychologists and social workers will receive a minimum raise of \$1,650 based on 1.0 FTE. The minimum raise for part-time and employees working more than 180 days shall be adjusted pro-rata.

2024-2025 TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE W/TRS

STEP	BS	BS+8	BS+16	BS+24	BS+32	MS	MS+8	MS+16	MS+24	MS+32	MS+40
1	\$40,711	\$41,729	\$42,747	\$43,764	\$44,171	\$44,782	\$45,800	\$46,818	\$47,835	\$48,853	\$49,871
2	\$41,641	\$42,659	\$43,677	\$44,694	\$45,101	\$45,712	\$46,730	\$47,748	\$48,765	\$49,783	\$50,801
3	\$42,571	\$43,589	\$44,607	\$45,624	\$46,031	\$46,642	\$47,660	\$48,678	\$49,695	\$50,713	\$51,731
4	\$43,501	\$44,519	\$45,537	\$46,554	\$46,961	\$47,572	\$48,590	\$49,608	\$50,625	\$51,643	\$52,661
5	\$44,431	\$45,449	\$46,467	\$47,484	\$47,891	\$48,502	\$49,520	\$50,538	\$51,555	\$52,573	\$53,591
6	\$45,361	\$46,379	\$47,397	\$48,414	\$48,821	\$49,432	\$50,450	\$51,468	\$52,485	\$53,503	\$54,521
7	\$46,291	\$47,309	\$48,327	\$49,344	\$49,751	\$50,362	\$51,380	\$52,398	\$53,415	\$54,433	\$55,451
8	\$47,221	\$48,239	\$49,257	\$50,274	\$50,681	\$51,292	\$52,310	\$53,328	\$54,345	\$55,363	\$56,381
9	\$48,151	\$49,169	\$50,187	\$51,204	\$51,611	\$52,222	\$53,240	\$54,258	\$55,275	\$56,293	\$57,311
10	\$49,081	\$50,099	\$51,117	\$52,134	\$52,541	\$53,152	\$54,170	\$55,188	\$56,205	\$57,223	\$58,241
11	\$50,011	\$51,029	\$52,047	\$53,064	\$53,471	\$54,082	\$55,100	\$56,118	\$57,135	\$58,153	\$59,171
12	\$50,941	\$51,959	\$52,977	\$53,994	\$54,401	\$55,012	\$56,030	\$57,048	\$58,065	\$59,083	\$60,101
13	\$51,871	\$52,889	\$53,907	\$54,924	\$55,331	\$55,942	\$56,960	\$57,978	\$58,995	\$60,013	\$61,031
14	\$52,801	\$53,819	\$54,837	\$55,854	\$56,261	\$56,872	\$57,890	\$58,908	\$59,925	\$60,943	\$61,961
15	\$53,731	\$54,749	\$55,767	\$56,784	\$57,191	\$57,802	\$58,820	\$59,838	\$60,855	\$61,873	\$62,891
16	\$54,661	\$55,679	\$56,697	\$57,714	\$58,121	\$58,732	\$59,750	\$60,768	\$61,785	\$62,803	\$63,821
17	\$55,591	\$56,609	\$57,627	\$58,644	\$59,051	\$59,662	\$60,680	\$61,698	\$62,715	\$63,733	\$64,751
18	\$56,521	\$57,539	\$58,557	\$59,574	\$59,981	\$60,592	\$61,610	\$62,628	\$63,645	\$64,663	\$65,681
19	\$57,451	\$58,469	\$59,487	\$60,504	\$60,911	\$61,522	\$62,540	\$63,558	\$64,575	\$65,593	\$66,611
20	\$58,381	\$59,399	\$60,417	\$61,434	\$61,841	\$62,452	\$63,470	\$64,488	\$65,505	\$66,523	\$67,541
21	\$59,311	\$60,329	\$61,347	\$62,364	\$62,771	\$63,382	\$64,400	\$65,418	\$66,435	\$67,453	\$68,471
22	\$60,241	\$61,259	\$62,277	\$63,294	\$63,701	\$64,312	\$65,330	\$66,348	\$67,365	\$68,383	\$69,401
23	\$61,171	\$62,189	\$63,207	\$64,224	\$64,631	\$65,242	\$66,260	\$67,278	\$68,295	\$69,313	\$70,331
24	\$62,101	\$63,119	\$64,137	\$65,154	\$65,561	\$66,172	\$67,190	\$68,208	\$69,225	\$70,243	\$71,261
25	\$63,031	\$64,049	\$65,067	\$66,084	\$66,491	\$67,102	\$68,120	\$69,138	\$70,155	\$71,173	\$72,191
26		\$64,979	\$65,997	\$67,014	\$67,421	\$68,032	\$69,050	\$70,068	\$71,085	\$72,103	\$73,121
27		\$65,909	\$66,927	\$67,944	\$68,351	\$68,962	\$69,980	\$70,998	\$72,015	\$73,033	\$74,051
28			\$67,857	\$68,874	\$69,281	\$69,892	\$70,910	\$71,928	\$72,945	\$73,963	\$74,981
29			\$68,787	\$69,804	\$70,211	\$70,822	\$71,840	\$72,858	\$73,875	\$74,893	\$75,911
30				\$70,734	\$71,141	\$71,752	\$72,770	\$73,788	\$74,805	\$75,823	\$76,841
31				\$71,664	\$72,071	\$72,682	\$73,700	\$74,718	\$75,735	\$76,753	\$77,771
32					\$73,001	\$73,612	\$74,630	\$75,648	\$76,665	\$77,683	\$78,701
33					\$73,931	\$74,542	\$75,560	\$76,578	\$77,595	\$78,613	\$79,631
34						\$75,472	\$76,490	\$77,508	\$78,525	\$79,543	\$80,561
35		VA.				\$76,402	\$77,420	\$78,438	\$79,455	\$80,473	\$81,491

Pychologists and social workers will receive a minimum raise of \$1,650 based on 1.0 FTE. The minimum raise for part-time and employees working more than 180 days shall be adjusted pro-rata.

Parapro	Non-Certified Wag fessionals				
	H.S. Diploma	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	YRS	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	1	\$13.90	\$14.00	\$14.10	\$15.0
	2	\$14.20	\$14.30	\$14.40	\$15.2
	3	\$14.50	\$14.60	\$14.70	\$15.5
	4	\$14.80	\$14.90	\$15.00	\$15.8
	5	\$15.10	\$15.20	\$15.30	\$16.0
	6	\$15.40	\$15.50	\$15.60	\$16.3
	7	\$15.70	\$15.80	\$15.90	\$16.6
	8	\$16.00	\$16.10	\$16.20	\$16.8
	9	\$16.30	\$16.40	\$16.50	\$17.1
	10	\$16.60	\$16.70	\$16.80	\$17.4
	11	\$16.90	\$17.00	\$17.10	\$17.7
	12	\$17.20	\$17.30	\$17.40	\$17.9
	13	\$17.50	\$17.60	\$17.70	\$18.2
	14	\$17.80	\$17.90	\$18.00	\$18.5
	15	\$18.10	\$18.20	\$18.30	\$18.7
	16	\$18.40	\$18.50	\$18.60	\$19.0
	17	\$18.70	\$18.80	\$18.90	\$19.3
	18	\$19.00	\$19.10	\$19.20	\$19.5
	19	\$19.30	\$19.40	\$19.50	\$19.8
	20	\$19.60	\$19.70	\$19.80	\$20.1
	21	\$19.90	\$20.00	\$20.10	\$20.4
	22	\$20.20	\$20.30	\$20.40	\$20.6
	23	\$20.50	\$20.60	\$20.70	\$20.9
	24	\$20.80	\$20.90	\$21.00	\$21.2
	25				\$21.48
	26				\$21.7
	27				\$22.02
	28				\$22.29
	29				\$22.56
	30				\$22.83
	31				\$23.10
	32				\$23.37
	33				\$23.64
	34				\$23.91
	35				\$24.18

	Certificate	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$14.10	\$14.20	\$14.30	\$15.2
	2	\$14.40	\$14.50	\$14.60	\$15.4
	3	\$14.70	\$14.80	\$14.90	\$15.7
	4	\$15.00	\$15.10	\$15.20	\$16.0
	5	\$15.30	\$15.40	\$15.50	\$16.2
	6	\$15.60	\$15.70	\$15.80	\$16.5
	7	\$15.90	\$16.00	\$16.10	\$16.8
	8	\$16.20	\$16.30	\$16.40	\$17.0
	9	\$16.50	\$16.60	\$16.70	\$17.3
	10	\$16.80	\$16.90	\$17.00	\$17.6
	11	\$17.10	\$17.20	\$17.30	\$17.9
	12	\$17.40	\$17.50	\$17.60	\$18.1
	13	\$17.70	\$17.80	\$17.90	\$18.4
	14	\$18.00	\$18.10	\$18.20	\$18.7
	15	\$18.30	\$18.40	\$18.50	\$18.9
	16	\$18.60	\$18.70	\$18.80	\$19.2
	17	\$18.90	\$19.00	\$19.10	\$19.5
	18	\$19.20	\$19.30	\$19.40	\$19.7
	19	\$19.50	\$19.60	\$19.70	\$20.0
	20	\$19.80	\$19.90	\$20.00	\$20.3
	21	\$20.10	\$20.20	\$20.30	\$20.6
	22	\$20.40	\$20.50	\$20.60	\$20.8
	23	\$20.70	\$20.80	\$20.90	\$21.1
	24	\$21.00	\$21.10	\$21.20	\$21.4
	25		TI.		\$21.6
	26				\$21.9
	27				\$22.2
	28				\$22.4
	29				\$22.7
1.7	30				\$23.0
	31				\$23.3
	32				\$23.5
	33				\$23.8
	34				\$24.3
	35				\$24.3
Employee #	10400	\$20.10	\$20.50	\$20.90	\$21.3
Employee #	10364	\$22.55	\$22.95	\$23.35	\$23.8
Employee #	10380	\$22.28	\$22.68	\$23.08	\$23.5

Bachelors	Year 1	Voor 2	V2	V .
Dacrieiois		Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
 YRS	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	A			
1	\$14.30	\$14.40	\$14.50	\$15.40
 2	\$14.60	\$14.70	\$14.80	\$15.67
3	\$14.90	\$15.00	\$15.10	\$15.94
4	\$15.20	\$15.30	\$15.40	\$16.21
5	\$15.50	\$15.60	\$15.70	\$16.48
 6	\$15.80	\$15.90	\$16.00	\$16.75
7	\$16.10	\$16.20	\$16.30	\$17.02
8	\$16.40	\$16.50	\$16.60	\$17.29
9	\$16.70	\$16.80	\$16.90	\$17.56
10	\$17.00	\$17.10	\$17.20	\$17.83
11	\$17.30	\$17.40	\$17.50	\$18.10
12	\$17.60	\$17.70	\$17.80	\$18.37
13	\$17.90	\$18.00	\$18.10	\$18.64
14	\$18.20	\$18.30	\$18.40	\$18.91
15	\$18.50	\$18.60	\$18.70	\$19.18
16	\$18.80	\$18.90	\$19.00	\$19.45
17	\$19.10	\$19.20	\$19.30	\$19.72
18	\$19.40	\$19.50	\$19.60	\$19.99
19	\$19.70	\$19.80	\$19.90	\$20.26
20	\$20.00	\$20.10	\$20.20	\$20.53
21	\$20.30	\$20.40	\$20.50	\$20.80
22	\$20.60	\$20.70	\$20.80	\$21.07
23	\$20.90	\$21.00	\$21.10	\$21.34
24	\$21.20	\$21.30	\$21.40	\$21.61
25				\$21.88
26				\$22.15
27				\$22.42
28				\$22.69
29				\$22.96
30				\$23.23
31				\$23.50
32				\$23.77
33				\$24.04
34				\$24.04
35				\$24.31

Cooks	1				
	Cook	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$12.90	\$13.05	\$14.00	\$15.00
	2	\$13.15	\$13.30	\$14.21	\$15.17
	3	\$13.40	\$13.55	\$14.42	\$15.34
	4	\$13.65	\$13.80	\$14.63	\$15.51
	5	\$13.90	\$14.05	\$14.84	\$15.68
	6	\$14.15	\$14.30	\$15.05	\$15.85
	7	\$14.40	\$14.55	\$15.26	\$16.02
	8	\$14.65	\$14.80	\$15.47	\$16.19
	9	\$14.90	\$15.05	\$15.68	\$16.36
	10	\$15.15	\$15.30	\$15.89	\$16.53
	11	\$15.40	\$15.55	\$16.10	\$16.70
	12	\$15.65	\$15.80	\$16.31	\$16.8
	13	\$15.90	\$16.05	\$16.52	\$17.0
	14	\$16.15	\$16.30	\$16.73	\$17.2
	15	\$16.40	\$16.55	\$16:94	\$17.3
	16	\$16.65	\$16.80	\$17.15	\$17.5
	17	\$16.90	\$17.05	\$17.36	\$17.7
	18	\$17.15	\$17.30	\$17.57	\$17.8
	19	\$17.40	\$17.55	\$17.78	\$18.0
	20	\$17.65	\$17.80	\$17.99	\$18.2
	21	\$17.90	\$18.05	\$18.20	\$18.4
	22	\$18.15	\$18.30	\$18.41	\$18.5
	23	\$18.40	\$18.55	\$18.62	\$18.7
	24	\$18.65	\$18.80	\$18.83	\$18.9
	25				\$19.0
	26				\$19.2
	27				\$19.4
	28				\$19.5
	29				\$19.7
	30				\$19.9
	31				\$20.1
	32				\$20.2
	33				\$20.4
	34				\$20.4
	35				\$20.7

Head Cook	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
YRS				
1	\$13.50	\$13.65	\$14.60	\$15.60
2	\$13.75	\$13.90	\$14.81	\$15.77
3	\$14.00	\$14.15	\$15.02	\$15.94
4	\$14.25	\$14.40	\$15.23	\$16.11
5	\$14.50	\$14.65	\$15.44	\$16.28
6	\$14.75	\$14.90	\$15.65	\$16.45
7	\$15.00	\$15.15	\$15.86	\$16.62
8	\$15.25	\$15.40	\$16.07	\$16.79
9	\$15.50	\$15.65	\$16.28	\$16.96
10	\$15.75	\$15.90	\$16.49	\$17.13
11	\$16.00	\$16.15	\$16.70	\$17.30
12	\$16.25	\$16.40	\$16.91	\$17.47
13	\$16.50	\$16.65	\$17.12	\$17.64
14	\$16.75	\$16.90	\$17.33	\$17.81
15	\$17.00	\$17.15	\$17.54	\$17.98
16	\$17.25	\$17.40	\$17.75	\$18.15
17	\$17.50	\$17.65	\$17.96	\$18.32
18	\$17.75	\$17.90	\$18.17	\$18.49
19	\$18.00	\$18.15	\$18.38	\$18.66
20	\$18.25	\$18.40	\$18.59	\$18.83
21	\$18.50	\$18.65	\$18.80	\$19.00
22	\$18.75	\$18.90	\$19.01	\$19.17
23	\$19.00	\$19.15	\$19.22	\$19.34
24	\$19.25	\$19.40	\$19.43	\$19.51
25				\$19.68
26				\$19.85
27				\$20.02
28				\$20.19
29				\$20.36
30				\$20.53
31				\$20.70
32				\$20.87
33				\$21.04
34				\$21.21
35				\$21.38

Custodians		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$14.55	\$14.65	\$14.75	\$15.00
	2	\$14.85	\$14.95	\$15.05	\$15.30
	3	\$15.15	\$15.25	\$15.35	\$15.60
	4	\$15.45	\$15.55	\$15.65	\$15.90
	5	\$15.75	\$15.85	\$15.95	\$16.20
	6	\$16.05	\$16.15	\$16.25	\$16.50
*	7	\$16.35	\$16.45	\$16.55	\$16.80
	8	\$16.65	\$16.75	\$16.85	\$17.10
	9	\$16.95	\$17.05	\$17.15	\$17.40
	10	\$17.25	\$17.35	\$17.45	\$17.70
	11	\$17.55	\$17.65	\$17.75	\$18.00
	12	\$17.85	\$17.95	\$18.05	\$18.30
	13	\$18.15	\$18.25	\$18.35	\$18.60
	14	\$18.45	\$18.55	\$18.65	\$18.90
	15	\$18.75	\$18.85	\$18.95	\$19.20
	16	\$19.05	\$19.15	\$19.25	\$19.50
	17	\$19.35	\$19.45	\$19.55	\$19.80
	18	\$19.65	\$19.75	\$19.85	\$20.1
	19	\$19.95	\$20.05	\$20.15	\$20.4
	20	\$20.25	\$20.35	\$20.45	\$20.7
	21	\$20.55	\$20.65	\$20.75	\$21.0
	22	\$20.85	\$20.95	\$21.05	\$21.3
	23	\$21.15	\$21.25	\$21.35	\$21.6
	24	\$21.45	\$21.55	\$21.65	\$21.9
	25				\$22.2
	26				\$22.5
	27				\$22.8
	28				\$23.1
	29				\$23.4
	30				\$23.7
	31				\$24.0
	32				\$24.3
	33				\$24.6
	34				\$24.9
	35				\$25.2

Custodians working shifts that begin after 1pm will be given a .25 per hour shift premium.

	Library	Year 1	Voor 2	V 2	V 1
	Library		Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	YRS	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	1	¢12.20	440.00	A	
	2	\$12.30	\$13.00	\$14.00	\$15.00
		\$12.50	\$13.18	\$14.14	\$15.10
	3	\$12.70	\$13.36	\$14.28	\$15.20
	4	\$12.90	\$13.54	\$14.42	\$15.30
	5	\$13.10	\$13.72	\$14.56	\$15.40
	6	\$13.30	\$13.90	\$14.70	\$15.50
=	7	\$13.50	\$14.08	\$14.84	\$15.60
	8	\$13.70	\$14.26	\$14.98	\$15.70
	9	\$13.90	\$14.44	\$15.12	\$15.80
	10	\$14.10	\$14.62	\$15.26	\$15.90
	11	\$14.30	\$14.80	\$15.40	\$16.00
	12	\$14.50	\$14.98	\$15.54	\$16.10
	13	\$14.70	\$15.16	\$15.68	\$16.20
	14	\$14.90	\$15.34	\$15.82	\$16.30
	15	\$15.10	\$15.52	\$15.96	\$16.40
	16	\$15.30	\$15.70	\$16.10	\$16.50
	17	\$15.50	\$15.88	\$16.24	\$16.60
	18	\$15.70	\$16.06	\$16.38	\$16.70
	19	\$15.90	\$16.24	\$16.52	\$16.80
	20	\$16.10	\$16.42	\$16.66	\$16.90
	21	\$16.30	\$16.60	\$16.80	\$17.00
	22	\$16.50	\$16.78	\$16.94	\$17.10
	23	\$16.70	\$16.96	\$17.08	\$17.20
	24	\$16.90	\$17.14	\$17.22	\$17.30
	25				\$17.40
	26				\$17.50
	27				\$17.60
	28				\$17.70
	29				\$17.80
	30				\$17.90
	31				\$18.00
	32				\$18.10
	33				\$18.20
	34				\$18.30
	35				\$18.40

Lunch Room	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
YRS				
1	\$12.10	\$13.00	\$14.00	\$15.00
2	\$12.35	\$13.21	\$14.16	\$15.12
3	\$12.60	\$13.42	\$14.32	\$15.24
4	\$12.85	\$13.63	\$14.48	\$15.36
5	\$13.10	\$13.84	\$14.64	\$15.48
6	\$13.35	\$14.05	\$14.80	\$15.60
7	\$13.60	\$14.26	\$14.96	\$15.72
8	\$13.85	\$14.47	\$15.12	\$15.84
9	\$14.10	\$14.68	\$15.28	\$15.96
10	\$14.35	\$14.89	\$15.44	\$16.08
11	\$14.60	\$15.10	\$15.60	\$16.20
12	\$14.85	\$15.31	\$15.76	\$16.32
13	\$15.10	\$15.52	\$15.92	\$16.44
14	\$15.35	\$15.73	\$16.08	\$16.56
15	\$15.60	\$15.94	\$16.24	\$16.68
16	\$15.85	\$16.15	\$16.40	\$16.80
17	\$16.10	\$16.36	\$16.56	\$16.92
18	\$16.35	\$16.57	\$16.72	\$17.04
19	\$16.60	\$16.78	\$16.88	\$17.16
20	\$16.85	\$16.99	\$17.04	\$17.28
21	\$17.10	\$17.20	\$17.20	\$17.40
22	\$17.35	\$17.41	\$17.36	\$17.52
23	\$17.60	\$17.62	\$17.52	\$17.64
24	\$17.85	\$17.83	\$17.68	\$17.76
25				\$17.88
26				\$18.00
27				\$18.12
28				\$18.24
29			ľ	\$18.36
30				\$18.48
31				\$18.60
32				\$18.72
33				\$18.84
34				\$18.96
35				\$19.08

Clerks		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$12.75	\$13.00	\$14.00	\$15.00
	2	\$13.00	\$13.25	\$14.21	\$15.17
	3	\$13.25	\$13.50	\$14.42	\$15.34
	4	\$13.50	\$13.75	\$14.63	\$15.51
	5	\$13.75	\$14.00	\$14.84	\$15.68
	6	\$14.00	\$14.25	\$15.05	\$15.85
	7	\$14.25	\$14.50	\$15.26	\$16.02
	8	\$14.50	\$14.75	\$15.47	\$16.19
	9	\$14.75	\$15.00	\$15.68	\$16.36
	10	\$15.00	\$15.25	\$15.89	\$16.53
	11	\$15.25	\$15.50	\$16.10	\$16.70
	12	\$15.50	\$15.75	\$16.31	\$16.87
	13	\$15.75	\$16.00	\$16.52	\$17.04
	14	\$16.00	\$16.25	\$16.73	\$17.21
	15	\$16.25	\$16.50	\$16.94	\$17.38
	16	\$16.50	\$16.75	\$17.15	\$17.55
	17	\$16.75	\$17.00	\$17.36	\$17.72
	18	\$17.00	\$17.25	\$17.57	\$17.89
	19	\$17.25	\$17.50	\$17.78	\$18.06
	20	\$17.50	\$17.75	\$17.99	\$18.23
	21	\$17.75	\$18.00	\$18.20	\$18.40
	22	\$18.00	\$18.25	\$18.41	\$18.57
	23	\$18.25	\$18.50	\$18.62	\$18.74
	24	\$18.50	\$18.75	\$18.83	\$18.91
	25				\$19.08
	26				\$19.25
	27				\$19.42
	28				\$19.59
	29				\$19.76
-	30				\$19.93
	31				\$20.10
	32				\$20.27
	33				\$20.44
	34				\$20.61
	35				\$20.78

Secretaries					
	H.S.				
	Diploma	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	YRS	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	1	\$13.90	\$14.00	\$14.10	\$15.00
	2	\$14.20	\$14.30	\$14.40	\$15.27
	3	\$14.50	\$14.60	\$14.70	\$15.54
	4	\$14.80	\$14.90	\$15.00	\$15.81
	5	\$15.10	\$15.20	\$15.30	\$16.08
	6	\$15.40	\$15.50	\$15.60	\$16.35
	7	\$15.70	\$15.80	\$15.90	\$16.62
	8	\$16.00	\$16.10	\$16.20	\$16.89
	9	\$16.30	\$16.40	\$16.50	\$17.16
	10	\$16.60	\$16.70	\$16.80	\$17.43
	11	\$16.90	\$17.00	\$17.10	\$17.70
	12	\$17.20	\$17.30	\$17.40	\$17.97
	13	\$17.50	\$17.60	\$17.70	\$18.24
	14	\$17.80	\$17.90	\$18.00	\$18.51
	15	\$18.10	\$18.20	\$18.30	\$18.78
	16	\$18.40	\$18.50	\$18.60	\$19.05
	17	\$18.70	\$18.80	\$18.90	\$19.32
	18	\$19.00	\$19.10	\$19.20	\$19.59
	19	\$19.30	\$19.40	\$19.50	\$19.86
	20	\$19.60	\$19.70	\$19.80	\$20.13
	21	\$19.90	\$20.00	\$20.10	\$20.40
	22	\$20.20	\$20.30	\$20.40	\$20.67
	23	\$20.50	\$20.60	\$20.70	\$20.94
	24	\$20.80	\$20.90	\$21.00	\$21.21
	25				\$21.48
	26				\$21.75
	27				\$22.02
	28				\$22.29
	29				\$22.56
	30				\$22.83
	31				\$23.10
	32				\$23.37
	33				\$23.64
	34				\$23.91
	35				\$24.18
Employee #	10655	\$21.75	\$22.15	\$22.55	\$23.03
Employee #	11028	\$20.50	\$20.90	\$21.30	\$21.78
Employee #	10394	\$20.20	\$20.60	\$21.00	\$21.48

Secretaries					
	Associates	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$14.10	\$14.20	\$14.30	\$15.2
	2	\$14.40	\$14.50	\$14.60	\$15.4
	3	\$14.70	\$14.80	\$14.90	\$15.7
	4	\$15.00	\$15.10	\$15.20	\$16.0
	5	\$15.30	\$15.40	\$15.50	\$16.2
	6	\$15.60	\$15.70	\$15.80	\$16.5
	7	\$15.90	\$16.00	\$16.10	\$16.8
	8	\$16.20	\$16.30	\$16.40	\$17.09
	9	\$16.50	\$16.60	\$16.70	\$17.3
	10	\$16.80	\$16.90	\$17.00	\$17.6
	11	\$17.10	\$17.20	\$17.30	\$17.9
	12	\$17.40	\$17.50	\$17.60	\$18.1
	13	\$17.70	\$17.80	\$17.90	\$18.4
	14	\$18.00	\$18.10	\$18.20	\$18.7
	15	\$18.30	\$18.40	\$18.50	\$18.9
	16	\$18.60	\$18.70	\$18.80	\$19.2
	17	\$18.90	\$19.00	\$19.10	\$19.52
	18	\$19.20	\$19.30	\$19.40	\$19.79
	19	\$19.50	\$19.60	\$19.70	\$20.00
	20	\$19.80	\$19.90	\$20.00	\$20.33
	21	\$20.10	\$20.20	\$20.30	\$20.60
	22	\$20.40	\$20.50	\$20.60	\$20.87
	23	\$20.70	\$20.80	\$20.90	\$21.14
	24	\$21.00	\$21.10	\$21.20	\$21.42
	25				\$21.68
	26				\$21.95
	27				\$22.22
	28				\$22.49
	29				\$22.76
	30				\$23.03
	31				\$23.30
	32				\$23.57
	33				\$23.84
	34				\$24.11
	35				\$24.38

Secretaries					
	Bachelors	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
		21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
	YRS				
	1	\$14.30	\$14.40	\$14.50	\$15.40
	2	\$14.60	\$14.70	\$14.80	\$15.67
	3	\$14.90	\$15.00	\$15.10	\$15.94
	4	\$15.20	\$15.30	\$15.40	\$16.21
	5	\$15.50	\$15.60	\$15.70	\$16.48
	6	\$15.80	\$15.90	\$16.00	\$16.75
	7	\$16.10	\$16.20	\$16.30	\$17.02
	8	\$16.40	\$16.50	\$16.60	\$17.29
	9	\$16.70	\$16.80	\$16.90	\$17.56
	10	\$17.00	\$17.10	\$17.20	\$17.83
	11	\$17.30	\$17.40	\$17.50	\$18.10
	12	\$17.60	\$17.70	\$17.80	\$18.37
	13	\$17.90	\$18.00	\$18.10	\$18.64
	14	\$18.20	\$18.30	\$18.40	\$18.91
	15	\$18.50	\$18.60	\$18.70	\$19.18
	16	\$18.80	\$18.90	\$19.00	\$19.45
	17	\$19.10	\$19.20	\$19.30	\$19.72
	18	\$19.40	\$19.50	\$19.60	\$19.99
	19	\$19.70	\$19.80	\$19.90	\$20.26
	20	\$20.00	\$20.10	\$20.20	\$20.53
	21	\$20.30	\$20.40	\$20.50	\$20.80
	22	\$20.60	\$20.70	\$20.80	\$21.07
	23	\$20.90	\$21.00	\$21.10	\$21.34
	24	\$21.20	\$21.30	\$21.40	\$21.61
	25				\$21.88
	26				\$22.15
	27				\$22.42
	28				\$22.69
	29				\$22.96
	30				\$23.23
	31			Ì	\$23.50
	32				\$23.77
	33				\$24.04
	34				\$24.31
	35				\$24.58

Bus				
Monitors	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
	21-22	22-23	23-24	24-25
YRS				
1	\$16.37	\$16.69	\$17.01	\$17.33
2	\$16.45	\$16.77	\$17.09	\$17.41
3	\$16.53	\$16.85	\$17.17	\$17.49
4	\$16.60	\$16.93	\$17.25	\$17.57
5	\$16.67	\$17.00	\$17.33	\$17.65
6+	\$16.74	\$17.07	\$17.40	\$17.73
Bus Drivers				
			2	
YRS				
1	\$23.45	\$23.70	\$23.95	\$24.20
2	\$23.70	\$23.95	\$24.20	\$24.45
3	\$23.95	\$24.20	\$24.45	\$24.70
4	\$24.20	\$24.45	\$24.70	\$24.95
5	\$24.45	\$24.70	\$24.95	\$25.20
6-10	\$24.70	\$24.95	\$25.20	\$25.45
11-15	\$24.95	\$25.20	\$25.45	\$25.70
16-20	\$25.20	\$25.45	\$25.70	\$25.95
21+	\$25.45	\$25.70	\$25.95	\$26.20
Extra trips	\$13.60	\$14.00	\$14.40	\$15.00